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MESSAGE FROM THE ARCHBISHOP

We live in an imperfect world and we are constantly trying to find new 
ways to make it better. Our charitable organisations, particularly those 
under the stewardship of Caritas, play an important role in serving 
our brothers and sisters in need, helping them to live in dignity and to 
make their tomorrows better than today.

It is poignant that Caritas Singapore celebrated its 10th Anniversary in 
this Jubilee Year of Mercy.   As the social mission arm of the Church, 
Caritas Singapore draws on the strength of many volunteers, social 
workers and caregivers to provide the varied social services to those 
in need.  However, often, those of us who are in the service of the 
poor and the needy lose sight of the primary purpose of why we do 
what we do.

The Social Mission Conference this year, with its theme, ‘Witness to 
Mercy; Bearer of Compassion’, was an opportune time for us to take 
stock of our purpose and direction, and to reignite our passion for the 
ministry.  

Indeed, as a Catholic organisation, it is important that we remain ever 
conscious that our good works originate from an active faith in Christ, 
flowing from our personal experience of the love of God.  This is unlike 
the humanists, whose good works are motivated by the compassion 
that is already embedded in every human being. Not that there is 
anything wrong with being motivated by pure human compassion for 
the other, but as St Paul in 2 Corinthians 5:14 says, it is the love of 
Christ that urges us on. Only such love is able to sustain our passion 
and keep our motives pure. 

“For the love of Christ impels us, once we have come to the conviction 
that one died for all; therefore, all have died.  He indeed died for all, 
so that those who live might no longer live for themselves but for him 
who for their sake died and was raised.” 

This must be the foundation for Christian charity. Our desire to spread 
the love and compassion of Christ to them is in order that they too 
might come to know that God is love and mercy.   Our hope for them 
goes beyond satisfying their material and physical needs, but that 
they find spiritual peace through coming to know the Lord. Unlike 
humanists, for us Christians, salvation is not only of the human body 
but more importantly, of the soul. 

This year, Caritas Singapore has done particularly well in the area 
of good governance. It is to be congratulated for being one of the 
winners of the inaugural Charity Transparency Awards 2016. Such 

A True Witness Knows 
the Mercy of  God

“Our desire to spread the love 
and compassion of  Christ to 
them is in order that they too 
might come to know that God 
is love and mercy. Our hope 
for them goes beyond satisfying 
their material and physical 

spiritual peace through  
coming to know the Lord.” 

– Archbishop William Goh
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best practices are necessary as not only are we dependent on 
the support of well-wishers to fund our charitable works, but as a 
Christian organisation, we should be models of good stewardship 
of the resources that are entrusted to us. Still, there remains much 
more to be done.   

The Church is thankful to all who have collaborated with us in partnering 
the poor.  Caritas, its staff, volunteers, member organisations as well 
as donors and partners have contributed generously in this area.

Aside from looking after the needs of the materially poor, empowering 
them to live their lives to their fullest potential, Caritas must also work 
at tending to the spiritual needs of its own social workers and those 
of its member organisations, rooting them in the faith so that they 
can give from the love that has already been poured into their hearts. 
Only a heart that has known the joy and mercy of God can be a true 
witness to the mercy and compassion of God.

Yours in Christ

Most Rev William Goh, DD
Archbishop of Singapore  
Patron, Caritas Singapore

“Only a heart that has known 
the joy and mercy of  God can 
be a true witness to the mercy 
and compassion of  God.”  

– Archbishop William Goh
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Dear Friends, 

Another year has swiftly passed us by.  But 2016 was no ordinary year 
as it was declared by Pope Francis to be the Extraordinary Jubilee 
Year of Mercy. Together with Catholics across the globe, the Caritas 
Singapore family, staff, volunteers and partners prayed in faith, for 
the special Jubilee grace to “Be merciful like the heavenly Father”. 

And, indeed, we have witnessed God’s faithfulness and mercy in the 
many blessings we have received during the year, and I would like to 
highlight a few of them. 

(1) 2016 marks the 10th anniversary of the incorporation of Caritas 
Singapore, previously known as Catholic Social and Community 
Council or CSCC. Caritas Singapore was set up with the purpose to 
provide common leadership, direction, and coordination amongst 
the Catholic charities in Singapore who collectively serve more than 
50,000 persons-in-need regardless of their race, language or religion. 

On this anniversary year, we are delighted to welcome Mount Alvernia 
Hospital as the 25th member organisation of the Caritas Singapore 
family, joining other Catholic charities like Boys’ Town (1948),  
Society of St Vincent de Paul (1951), Catholic Welfare Services 
(1959) and Infant Jesus Homes (1854), Abilities Beyond Limitation & 
Expectation (2010) for the physically challenged; CLARITY (2010) for 
those with mental health issues and Mamre Oaks (2015) for adults 
with special needs. 

The values and principles of Caritas is based on Knowing and Living the 
Catholic Social Teachings. We do not do this just out of humanitarian 
compassion but because we believe that our Christian faith calls 
each of us to Reflect Christ in Service and bring God’s merciful love to 
our neighbour - the hungry, the naked, the disadvantaged, the lonely, 
those in prison and those rejected by society – empowering hopeful 
people to live dignified lives.  

(2) The Social Mission Conference (SMC) 2016 is the fifth in the 
series organised by Caritas Singapore for the community to gather, 
dialogue and encourage one another in the work of “doing good” and 
“accompanying" our brothers and sisters who are disadvantaged. 
We were blessed to have His Eminence, Luis Antonio Gokim Cardinal 
Tagle – President of Caritas Internationalis and our own Archbishop 
William Goh join in solidarity with the speakers and 600 participants 
at the Catholic Junior College Auditorium, to share their reflections 
on the theme, ‘Witness to Mercy, Bearer of Compassion’ and to

“Witness to Mercy. Bearer of  
Compassion”

“I ask for your continued 
prayers and support for all of  
us at Caritas Singapore as 
we journey with all whom we 
serve with love and faithful-
ness, just as God is love.”
 

– Janet Ang
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inspire personal response. It was the first time that SMC included 
pre-conference volunteer experience with our Caritas member 
organisations, for conference participants. It was also the first time 
that SMC had a Caritas Young Adults’ Day (Mission of Mercy Event) 
with the hope  to spark the interest of young people in the social 
mission of the Catholic Church.

(3) Agape Village, the Caritas one-stop help centre that provides 
integrated and holistic support under one-roof and is a platform for 
collaboration amongst the Caritas family member organisations as 
well as other Voluntary Welfare Organisations (VWOs) and social 
service agencies, celebrated its first full year of operations in  
November 2016. 

There are many blessings to be thankful for at Agape Village, some 
of which includes the setting up of Mount Alvernia Outreach Medical 
and Dental Clinic to serve low-income families; the Catholic Lawyers’ 
Guild’s bi-weekly free legal consultation and mediation services at 
Agape Village which have helped more than 220 clients who could not 
have afforded a lawyer otherwise; and the “Share-A-Pot Programme” 
collaboration with Khoo Teck Puat Hospital, building bones and bonds 
of friendship amongst vulnerable seniors. 

(4) 2016 has been a challenging year for the economy in Singapore.  
We are doubly grateful to all the generous donors who have given 
selflessly to fund the grants that support the operations of our Caritas 
member organisations and the operating expenses of Agape Village.

As part of the government’s SG50 celebrations for VWOs, Caritas 
received $2.9 million through the Care and Share matching grant.

The “Archdiocesan Charities Week Lenten Campaign” raised  
$5.8 million and I acknowledge our fellow Catholic parishioners for  
their partnership in the social mission of the Catholic Church with 
their financial support. 

I am also very grateful to the organising committees of the Caritas 
Charity Golf 2016 and the Down Memory Lane Charity Dinner 2016 
for raising between them, a sum total of $500,000. “Down Memory 
Lane” saw a record sponsorship of 69 tables with families and friends 
turning up to help us celebrate our 10th Anniversary milestone. 

(5) Strengthening organisation capability continues to be a key priority 
for Caritas. I am pleased to share that Caritas Singapore was among 
the recipients of the Charity Transparency Awards 2016.

On behalf of the board and trustees, I would like to thank all staff and 
volunteers of Caritas Singapore and our member organisations for 
their commitment and dedication in “Partnering the Poor”. 

“2016 has been a challenging 
year for the economy in 
Singapore.  We are doubly 
grateful to all the generous 
donors who have given 

that support the operations of  
our Caritas member organi-
sations and the operating 
expenses of  Agape Village.”
 

– Janet Ang
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One Church
2016 has indeed been a Year of Mercy! I would like to thank all who 
have supported us – with your time, your expertise, your prayers and 
your generous donations, big and small. Though now that the Jubilee 
Year has ended and the Holy Doors of the Cathedrals and Churches 
are closed, I hope that the doors of our hearts remain open to the 
mercy of God and to His call for us to be witnesses to mercy and 
bearers of compassion, in our neighbourhoods, our schools, our 
workplaces, wherever we are.

Archbishop William Goh has outlined his vision and plans for an 
evangelistic and missionary Church in the Archdiocese of Singapore. 
Caritas Singapore will play our part and hope to inspire more 
individuals to go beyond their comfort zone, and to be willing to be 
generous both in giving to our neighbour in need as well as in building 
up the Archdiocese of Singapore.

I ask for your continued prayers and support for all of us at Caritas 
Singapore as we journey with all whom we serve with love and 
faithfulness, just as God is love.

May God’s peace be with you. Shalom. 

Yours in Christ,

Janet Ang 
Chairman
Caritas Singapore

“Mercy is the willingness 
to enter into the chaos of  
others.” 
– Fr. James Keenan, SJ
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Caritas Singapore  
Review Of  FY2016

Strategic Priorities 2015 - 2018

Caritas Singapore is the social and charitable arm of the Catholic 
Archdiocese of Singapore. We provide coordination, direction and 
leadership to 25 Catholic social mission groups under the umbrella 
of Caritas Singapore, carrying out work for the poor, marginalised and 
the community regardless of race, religion or status.

Our Catholic social and charitable organisations serve a wide array 
of needs that include the poor, families and youths at risk, children, 
prisoners, people living with HIV/AIDS, people requiring palliative care, 
migrant workers, overseas missions, and those who are physically 
and mentally challenged. 

Caritas is a Latin word meaning love and charity. The work of Caritas 
Singapore and our affiliate Member Organisations (MOs) for the 
poor and disadvantaged is inspired by the call of Christ to “love one 
another as He had loved us”. 

Caritas Singapore is a member of Caritas Internationalis, a global 
confederation of 165 national members. Headquartered at the 
Vatican City, Caritas Internationalis has representatives at the United 
Nations in New York and Geneva. Caritas Internationalis together 
with its MOs, provide relief, development and social services to 24 
million people in more than 200 countries and territories worldwide. 

Our Programmes

Fundraising 
Caritas Singapore raises money 
through key initiatives, to help 
support member organisations 
under its umbrella 

Grant Making
Caritas Singapore disburse 
funds to member organisations, 
by an established grant making 
process to ensure governance 
and accountability

Formation
Through forums, discussions, 
courses, Caritas Singapore aims 
to make the Church’s social 
mission come alive

Parish Engagement
Caritas Singapore engages, 
collaborates and supports parish 
groups to live out their social 
mission

Advocacy & Research
In partnership with other 
like-minded, Caritas Singapore 
raises awareness of issues faced 
by the poor and disadvantaged

Volunteer Management
Caritas Singapore promotes 
volunteerism and matches 
volunteers as based on skills, 
interests and fit to member 
organisations

Membership and Networking
Caritas Singapore works with 
member organisations, to 
foster collaboration and sharing 
through regular network sessions

Governance & Capacity Building
Caritas Singapore promotes and 
shares governance and capacity 
building best practices with 
member organisations

At the Caritas Singapore Board retreat held in January 2015, our 
Board developed a set of strategic priorities to steer the work of 
Caritas Singapore over the next four years from 2015 to 2018. 

Our vision to be the visible sign of God’s love for humanity is 
encapsulated in the four pillars of our strategic plan for 2016.

The Caritas Singapore Board Retreat in January 2015
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Strategic Priority No 1 
“Knowing Christ,  

Knowing Catholic Social Teaching”
(There is an inseparable bond between our faith and 
the poor. May we never abandon them. - Evangelii 
Gaudium [Joy of the Gospel], 48, Pope Francis)

To live out our Caritas Singapore mission and vision, 
Christ has to be our cornerstone. Through our 
formation programmes, many have discovered a 
deeper appreciation of the Catholic Social Teaching 
(CST), enabling them to live out their faith in Jesus 
Christ more authentically in the world. To-date, 
161 Board members and staff from 18 member 
organisations have completed the CST training 
and 101 people have attended the Discipleship 
workshop. A CST workshop was conducted for a 
parish ministry with 15 participants.

In 2017, we will continue to extend our formation 
programmes to Board members, staff and volunteers 
and to reach out to the parishes to enable more 
Catholics to understand CST and be motivated by 
their faith to “go forth” to do good.

Strategic Priority No 2 
“Reflecting Christ in Service”

(Jesus does not tire of saying to us: “Give them 
something to eat.” [Mark 6:37] - Evangelii Gaudium 
[Joy of the Gospel], 49, Pope Francis)

Our Caritas Singapore member organisations serve 
a multitude of needs from caring for the aged and 
the physically challenged to those with intellectual 
disabilities; from the youth at risk to the elderly 
poor; from the marginalised to the migrants. In 
2016, we are blessed to welcome Mount Alvernia 
Hospital which operates the Outreach Medical and 
Dental Clinics at Agape Village.

As staff and volunteers of the Caritas Singapore 
family, we are to be “reflections” of Christ who is 
always merciful, compassionate and who loved 
everyone unconditionally. As humans, we have our 
failings and often fall into sin. Let us encourage and 
support one another to be like Mary, Joseph and 
the Wise Men who having encountered Emmanuel, 
God-with-us, in the person of Jesus the baby in 
the manger; and be forever transformed and make  

Knowing Christ, Knowing CST
Staff and volunteers formed in CST
More Catholics understand CST
and are motivated by their faith to
do good

Giving Voice to Christ in the Poor
Be an authentic, credible and responsible
voice of the poor
Enable the poor to speak for themselves

Living Christ in Our Parishes
Engage, collaborate and support parish
groups including families in living out
their social mission
Support active volunteer engagement

Reflecting Christ in Service

compassion and love, as Christ did

Member Organisations

Strengthening Organisational Capabilities

Vision
for humanity demonstrated by 

Catholics living the principles and 
values of the Catholic Social 

Teaching (CST)

Mission
To collaborate and provide leadership 

Singapore in fulfilling the Catholic 

the most vulnerable in society

Caritas Singapore Strategic Plan
2015 - 2018
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choices that will involve us “conceiving God’s 
presence in our milieu”, “listening and doing God’s 
will even if the world may frown upon us”; and “going 
a different way” because we have been “evangelised 
by the poor”. 

Strategic Priority No 3 
“Giving Voice to Christ in the Poor”

(We are called to find Christ in them, to lend our 
voice to their causes, but also to be their friends, 
to listen to them, to speak for them. - Evangelii 
Gaudium [Joy of the Gospel],198, Pope Francis)

Beyond the structures and organisations, each of 
us is called to work as individuals and communities 
to make the Kingdom of God present in our 
world. Caritas Singapore’s “Singaporeans Against 
Poverty” campaign or “SGAP”, continues to raise 
awareness of “poverty” in developed and affluent 
Singapore, inspiring individuals to reach out beyond 
their comfort zones to the vulnerable. 

We held our fourth RoundTable (RT4) on 23 
July 2016, which was a platform for animated 
discussions for 80 participants together with 
experts in the social service sector. It enabled them 
to see the ‘big picture’, identifying the struggles 
of the poor while respecting their dignity when 
offering social assistance - to nourish the hope of 
the poor for a more dignified life.

RT4 acted as a lead up to the fifth Caritas Singapore 
Social Mission Conference (SMC) on 13 August 
2016 attended by 530 participants. 160 young 
adults attended the Mission of Mercy Event on 14 
August as a special extension to SMC.

SMC explored how each of us can be ‘Witness 
to Mercy and Bearer of Compassion’ to people in 
need within our community. Cardinal Luis Antonio 
Tagle, President of Caritas Internationalis in his 
keynote theological reflection urge participants to 
“be a sign of hope by being a sign of disinterested 
love, a love that is purely given, not because I can 
receive anything back.  It gives a lot of light, of 
healing and a lot of hope to a broken world.” 

We hope that through such forums, we give voice to 
the social concerns in our community, and inspire 
individuals and communities to come together and 
collaborate in our work of partnering the poor.

In 2017, we will continue to leverage on technology 
such as our Integrated Case Management System 

(ICMS) to provide coordination and collaboration 
between our Member Organisations to improve 

continue to learn to "Give Voice to Christ in the Poor" 
through our social media and digital platforms and 
enhance its capabilities.

Strategic Priority No 4
“Living Christ in our Parishes”

(Each individual Christian and every community is 
called to be an instrument of God for the liberation 
and promotion of the poor...- Evangelii Gaudium 
[Joy of the Gospel],187, Pope Francis)

There are also many heartfelt initiatives taken 
at parish level to help the poor and needy.  
Caritas Singapore will continue to play our part to 
engage, collaborate and support parish priests 
and groups including families in living out the 
social mission of the Church. We will support active 
parish volunteer engagement with our Caritas 
Singapore member organisations especially 
Society of St Vincent de Paul. We will leverage on 
Agape Village as a platform to engage with the 
youth and the parishes through our programmes 
such as the Agape Experience and Living Our Faith 
in Community.

Archbishop William Goh has outlined his vision for 
an evangelistic and missionary Church working in 
communion to share the good news about Jesus 
Christ and be a visible witness of His love in every 
sphere of society. Caritas Singapore will play our 
part to make this vision a reality.

Strategic Priority No 5 
“Strengthening Organisational Capabilities” 

(“…like a wise man who built his house on the rock” 
- Matthew 7:24)

Good governance in all aspects of our operations 
and our IPC fund continues to be an integral 
foundation of Caritas Singapore. We will continue 
to strengthen our capabilities especially in the 
area of on-going understanding to the needs of the 
poor and the vulnerable in society; as well as more 
effective volunteer experience management where 
the personal faith and development dimensions 
are as much a part of the experience as is the 
actual work in partnering the poor. 

Caritas Singapore will strive to be the hub of 
knowledge and expertise for the Church on our 
social mission and on the Catholic Social Teaching.
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CARITAS SINGAPORE FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial Highlights
Financials FY 2016 ($) FY 2015 ($)

Donations and Fees 9,104,746 8,082,496

Donations to Agape Village Building Fund - 2,350,000

Government Care & Share Matching Grant 2,000,000 900,000

Sponsorships 173,800 239,445

Others 574,222 157,308

Total Income (Incoming Resources) 11,852,768 11,729,699

Costs of Charitable Activities 7,185,593 5,846,451

Fundraising and Sponsorship Costs – Agape Village - 67,837

Fundraising and Sponsorship Costs 261,754 203,125

Governance Costs 181,682 190,324

Total Expenditure (Resources Expended) 7,629,029 6,307,737

Net Income (Incoming Resources) 4,223,739 5,421,962

Ratios FY 2016 ($) FY 2015 ($)

Fundraising Ratio1 2.3% 2.3%

- Fundraising and Sponsorship Costs 261,754 270,962

- Total Funds Raised (Donations and Sponsorships) 11,278,546 11,572,391

Programme Ratio2 94% 93%

- Expenses spent on charitable programmes (including grants) 7,185,593 5,846,451

- Total Expenditure 7,629,029 6,307,737

Reserves Ratio3 2.71 years 2.94 years

- Reserves 19,944,343 17,720,604

Agape Village Building Fund4
15,627,494 14,171,526

Total Funds Raised.
2 Measures funds deployed on charity programmes versus fundraising and overheads. Computed based on 

(excluding Fundraising and Sponsorship Costs).
4 This is donations raised for the construction of Agape Village. As the building construction have just been 

completed, these funds will be transferred to a sinking fund for the purpose of maintenance and operational 
costs of Agape Village going forward.



2006

Catholic Social & Community Council Ltd (CSCC) now known as
Caritas Singapore was incorporated on 13 September as the
umbrella body to provide coordination, direction and leadership to
the Catholic charities and community organisations. As the social
arm of the Church, it has responsibility for the overall strategy to
meet community needs by identifying and filling gaps and
resolving overlaps.

Official launch of CSCC by the then Archbishop Nicholas Chia
on 10 November 2006.

2004

A massive earthquake and Tsunami
struck the region and countries in
the Indian Ocean on 26 December.
Many Catholics in Singapore
responded to the call for aid and
gave generously.

CARITAS SINGAPORE 10 YEARS JOURNEY - 2006 TO 2016

Pre-Incorporation

2005
to Early
2006

The benefits of the coordinated efforts of ACCT to disaster relief
prompted a similar call for a more coordinated and unified
approach to the various parish and religious charities helping the
poor and needy in Singapore. Two meetings were held with the
leaders of these groups and charities. The formation of an umbrella
body was proposed and subsequently approved by the Senate of
Priests and Archbishop Nicholas Chia.

2007

EARLY 2007
CSCC defined an overarching set of guidelines in
identifying where and how the Church should respond
in meeting community needs. 

CSCC started with fifteen Member Organisations and
grew to twenty five as of end November 2016 (three
were added in 2008, two in 2009, three in 2010, one
in 2015 and one in 2016).

10

2005

On 5 January, Archbishop Nicholas Chia tasked a team
to coordinate and shape the Church’s response at the
archdiocesan level. This resulted in the formation of
the Archdiocesan Crisis Coordination Team (ACCT)
which spearheaded the church’s efforts to aid the
Tsunami victims and those affected by other disasters.

The journey begins
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2007
Organised Volunteer Fairs at 20 parishes over five weekends
to spread the message of volunteering and helped Member
Organisations sign up volunteers from the ground. 

2007
The Catholic Social Teaching were distilled into
ten essential principles and a series of articles
were published in the Catholic News and Hai
Sing Pao to explain these ten principles.

2007
Relaunched CSCC led Charities Week Lenten
Campaign in March 2007.

2008

A study guide on the Basic Principles of
Catholic Social Teaching, Salt of the Earth was
launched. More than 3,000 Catholics have
completed the 12- session course to reflect on
everyday situations and learn to apply the
Catholic social teaching (CST) using the study
guides. The Mandarin version of Salt of the
Earth was launched in July 2009.

Volunteer Management Courses
were conducted for Member
Organisations so that they can more
systematically recruit, develop and
retain their volunteers

2007

Members’ Networking Meetings
We work with our member organisations to foster
collaboration and sharing through regular network
sessions now known as Leaders Council Meeting 2 to 3
times a year and overseas retreat every two years.  
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2008

Launch of the Inaugural Social Mission Conference on 26 July 2008
titled "Social Realities, Catholic Response". 

The biennial Social Mission Conference
highlights analysis of critical social issues and
presents reflection based on our Catholic Social
Teaching. It invites the faithful to go beyond
our comfort zone to the margins of society to
build communities of compassion and justice
to enable everyone to live with dignity. 

2008
A taskforce was formed to develop the Archdiocese’s framework for helping
the poor based on the principles of Catholic Social Teaching. Followed by a
joint Study of the Poor in 2010 commissioned by Catholic Welfare Services,
St Vincent de Paul and Caritas Singapore to understand the poverty landscape. 

The Study of the Poor report in 2011 identified three approaches that were key to
working with the poor – more upstream help (early intervention), holistic approach
(all aspects of a person’s need) and integrated services (single-point entry). 

2008

The community strategy report on the
environmental scan of possible social
challenges to understand emerging problems
and gaps that needed more in-depth research
was completed in December and 6 areas of
needs were identified. 

I. Ageing population
II. Physically challenged
III. Mentally challenged
IV. Migrants
V. Families at risk
VI. Adverse impact of globalisation

2009

2008

Published booklet, “Giving Hope” containing testimonies of beneficiaries and volunteers from our
Member Organisations which was distributed in conjunction with Charities Week in March 2009. 

Change of name in August from Catholic Social & Community Council Ltd
to Caritas Singapore Community Council Ltd and assumed the
membership of Caritas Internationalis.

2009
Distributed the booklet, “Put Your Faith into Action” at the
Social Mission Alive event on 22 August which highlighted the
channels of opportunities where volunteers can offer their skills
and time to help in the work of the Member Organisations 

2010
CHARIS previously known as Archdiocesan Crisis Coordination Team
was launched in August as the overseas arm of Caritas Singapore.

12
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2010

Caritas Singapore facilitated the formation of two new charities to
address the identified service gaps
1. Abilities Beyond Limitation & Expectation (ABLE) for the

physically challenged and 
2. CLARITY for the mentally challenged

2010

SOCIAL MISSION CONFERENCE 2010
“Transforming Ourselves and Society in Charity and Justice”.  

Feedback from participant- It has broadened my insight into the social teaching of the
Church. This event is a good reminder that we can also help the poor by being their voice.

2010
Launched Labours of the Harvest a study guide on Catholic Social Teaching
for Working Catholics in September.

2011 THE MAKING OF AGAPE VILLAGE 

• Due to redevelopment of the Thomson area, the
Government acquired the Good Shepherd Sister’s land in
2010, they were offered a 10,000sqm parcel of land at
Lorong 8, Toa Payoh in exchange. 

• As the Archdiocese owned 3,000 sqm of the land in Thomson, the Church was
offered 30% of the parcel of land next to the Good Shepherd Sisters (7,000 sqm)

• Caritas was challenged by the then Archbishop Nicholas Chia to build a Catholic
Village to serve the poor

• The Agape Village Steering Committee was formed in Dec 2011

• Building Cost: $12-15mil

• Agape Village was conceptualised based on the Study of the Poor report and the
concept of “Partnering the Poor” to be an integrated one-stop centre that brings
together the services of the 24 Catholic social mission groups of Caritas Singapore
under one common roof. 

2012

The Caritas Young Adults Committee was formed in February to
involve young adults between the ages of 18 to 35 years old in the
social mission of the Church. Their mission is
to support Caritas Singapore in helping
Catholic young adults to integrate their faith
and social responsibility by means of four
strategic thrusts: Educating, Inspiring,
Facilitating and Training & Development.
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CARITAS SINGAPORE 10 YEARS JOURNEY - 2006 TO 2016

2012
2 consultation exercises with Caritas members
and an envisioning exercise was carried out
at the 2012 Leader’s Retreat

2012

SOCIAL MISSION CONFERENCE 2012
“Partnering the Poor, Living Our Faith”   

The Archdiocese’s Framework for Helping the Poor was completed in early 2012 and was shared
with Member Organisations and the participants at the Social Mission Conference (SMC) 2012.

Feedback from participants - The conference has made clear the importance of a partnership rather
than a mere act of giving, which is something that has inspired me

2012
The Agape Village fundraising
was launched in Advent 2012

14

Envisioning exercise on how Agape Village will 
look like in 10 years at the 2012 Leaders Retreat

• In our Advocacy and Research work, Caritas Singapore work in partnership with our member
organisations to help the broader community become aware of the causes and plight faced by the poor
and marginalised in the community. We also undertake research and tap on member organisations’
analysis and learning to formulate its advocacy work and strategy

• We also organise the Caritas RoundTable forum which focuses on poverty trends, including the
intersection between poverty and other key social issues in Singapore. It is a platform
for Caritas Singapore to dialogue with non-profit organisations, academia and other
institutions seeking to make a difference on poverty matters regardless of race,
religion or other affiliations. The 1st Caritas RoundTable was held in May 2012

RoundTable II - “Partnership Against Poverty”

2013
Ground Breaking and Blessing ceremony of
Agape Village was held on 5 Sep

Janet Ang, Archbishop William Goh, Minister Chan Chun Sing,
Archbishop Emeritus Nicholas Chia and George Lim
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2013

In October, we launched our poverty initiative, “Singaporeans Against Poverty” (SGAP) with a multi-media
campaign through diverse platforms, including cinema, print, radio, mobile and online. The series of print
advertisements, radio and video commercials resonated with the
community through the focus on lifestyle choices which many people
have but the poor do not have.  

The advertising campaign was complemented and followed  by the $5
Challenge and the Beyond My Comfort Zone (BMZ) Challenge which were
launched on the SGAP microsite and FaceBook. The $5 Challenge was a hit 

and became an icon of SGAP

2014

MAY 2014 LEADERS RETREAT 
Reconnected the leaders with God’s love as the fundamental basis
for their social mission. The retreat also focused on how Catholic
Social Teaching can be applied in relation to staff, volunteers and
beneficiaries within their organisations. We also launched "The
five Principles of Service" which was developed in line with
Catholic Social Teaching and “Partnering the Poor” concepts.

5 principles of service 
i. Serving in a manner that upholds dignity
ii. Choice and Participation
iii. Personal and Family Responsibility
iv. Balance between longer term improvement and shorter term relief
v. Empowering rather than creating dependency

2014

SOCIAL MISSION CONFERENCE 2014
“I want a Church which is Poor and for the Poor” 

Feedback from participant - It inspired me to do more to
address the needs of the poor. I liked the clarity from the
top that serving the poor is not a choice but a part of living
out our faith.

2015 Mamre Oaks was formed in June 2015 to serve adults with Special Needs
and became a member of Caritas in November 2015.

2015 Agape Village Temporary Occupational Permit (TOP)
was obtained after 18 months of construction in July.

2015
Change of Logo to be in line
with Caritas Internationalis

in September.

Old logo New logo



CARITAS SINGAPORE 10 YEARS JOURNEY - 2006 TO 2016

2015 Official Opening and Blessing of Agape Village - 21 November

2016
Parish Engagement kicked off with the
Agape Experience in April 2016 reaching out
to 489 confirmands from 13 parishes including
73 catechists to-date

2016 Leaders Council Meeting in March 2016.  

2016 Leaders Retreat 2016 was held in May 2016 on with the theme
“Living Mercy” in line with the Jubilee Year of Mercy.   

The group reflected on these 2 questions
1. How have I experienced mercy in my life (my family, friends, work,

organisation) and What is the impact on me?
2. What does mercy currently look like in my organisation with respect

to leadership team (boards, management committees, …), staff,
volunteers and beneficiaries?

Sr Linda lead the group through the morning
prayers and reflection crossing the Door of Mercy at Agape Village. We were also encouraged
to use the para-liturgy amongst the various member organisations and Agape Village

Teo Jin Lee,
Janet Ang, Minister

Tan Chuan-Jin,
Archbishop William

Goh and George Lim

2016
In collaboration with National Health Group, Care
Corner and TOUCH Community Services,  The Bishan-
Toa Payoh Medical and Social Services Partners
Networking Events was launched on 14 April

2016
Caritas started Share-A-Pot @ Agape Village Programme on 15 June 2016
in collaboration with Alexandra Health System. 

16
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2016

Caritas Singapore celebrated 10 years of
excellent work together with its 25 Catholic
member organisations, closing the year with
Agape Village’s 1st Anniversary Open House and
Caritas’ 10th Anniversary on 19 November 2016.

2016

SOCIAL MISSION CONFERENCE 2016
For the first time we launched a series of 22 exposure and awareness
pre-conference programmes and events from June to August. 

Our Keynote speaker was His Eminence, Luis Antonio Gokim Cardinal
Tagle, President of Caritas Internationalis. He expounded on the
Church’s teachings on mercy, insights to God’s mercy for us, mercy
extended to the poor, and those suffering in our society. 

Feedback from participant - The Content was thought-provoking and I
greatly appreciated how it was anchored in the faith and Catholic Social Teaching, rather than
fall prey to the risk of becoming overly secular. I also loved the element of hope.

2016
The Down Memory Lane 6 Charity Dinner Show was organised to
celebrate our 10th Anniversary and showcased the work of Catholic
charities in their outreach to our beneficiaries on 1 October. The last
two Down Memory Lane Dinner was held in 2009 and 2012.

2016
Mt Alvernia became a member of Caritas Singapore.
Their Outreach Clinic including the first Dental Clinic
was officially launched on 20 August.

2016

Caritas Singapore has raised over the last 10 years $88.2m out of which $17.5m was for the
building of Agape Village ($2.9m was from the Government Care & Share Matching Grant).
Given out $42m in grants to 14 Member Organisations serving more than 50,000
beneficiaries.  Other fundraising platforms for Caritas includes sustained giving through
monthly GIRO, corporates and individuals through Giving.sg (SG Gives), Foundations, Golf &
Country Clubs, individuals & groups through musical and plays.

2016
Caritas Singapore Golf for Charity 2016 was held
in July at Tanah Merah Country Club. This event
was organised by Caritas since 2014.

As a special extension to the conference, Cardinal Tagle met with young adults,
between the ages of 18 to 35, in the Young Adults Mission of Mercy Event on
Sunday, 14 August.

2016 14 of our Member Organisations
are now operating in Agape Village



A One -Stop



AGAPE VILLAGE
A CARITAS INITIATIVE

Integrated Social Service Hub

Partnering the Poor, Living the Faith
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AGAPE VILLAGE - PARTNERING THE POOR, LIVING THE FAITH

Agape Village (AV) was officially opened and blessed by His Grace, 
Archbishop William Goh, on 21 November 2015, with Minister of 
Social and Family Development, Tan Chuan-Jin as the Guest-of-Honour.

Partnering the Poor, Living the Faith

Agape Village

“Agape Village ‘is to be 
a village of  love… a love 
without borders, without 
conditions, without 
condescension, and 
without expectation of  
rewards’.”  
– Archbishop William Goh

Rev Fr John Sim blessing Montfort Care’s 
Centre.

Minister Tan Chuan-Jin and His Grace, 
Archbishop William Goh being briefed about 
the Art Therapy Services.

The Greek word Agape means “unconditional love”, and one year after 
its opening, AV continues to serve people in need, regardless of race, 
religion or nationality. Leveraging on the strengths of the 14 Member 
Organisations (MOs) of Caritas Singapore, AV as a holistic, integrated 
social service hub has lived out our mission in providing assistance, 
care, hope and dignity to our clients.

Starting with the services and programmes of 13 organisations, AV 
has since been able to offer more with the launch of new services 
by our MOs and other organisations. These services includes night 
counselling by Family Life Society, job placement by Catholic Business 
Network, free legal representation and mediation services by Catholic 
Lawyers Guild, Medical and Dental Care at Mount Alvernia Hospital 
Outreach Clinic. Another new programme includes Family of Wisdom 
Programme by Alzheimer’s Disease Association that provides a 
continuum of community care for persons with early stage dementia 
and their caregivers. Pieta, a newly formed Catholic organisation, 
provides support for bereaved parents.

Facade of Agape Village

Ms. Teo Jin Lee, Chairperson, AV Management Committee, Ms Janet Ang, Chairperson, 
Caritas Singapore, Minister Tan Chuan-Jin, His Grace, Archbishop William Goh and Mr 

George Lim, Ex-Chairperson, Caritas Singapore (from left to right)



Caritas Singapore Annual Report 2016 21
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Services and Programmes at Agape Village

Sessions by MeToYou Programme for Cyber Wellness at Montfort Care Centre. IT classes by ACMI’s Skills Development Programme at Digital Innovation Room.

Member Organisation Services / Programmes Groups Served

1 Abilities Beyond Limitations and 
Expectations (ABLE)

- ABLE SEAS LTD

Respite Centre 
Rehabilitation Centre

Accounting, Payroll & Leave Management,  
and Corporate Services

Caregivers
Physically-challenged 

All

2 Archdiocesan Commission for the 
Pastoral Care of Migrants and 
Itinerant People (ACMI)

Training and Development 
Counselling

Migrants and Foreign 
Spouses

3 Boys’ Town Singapore Youth Outreach Youth

4 Catholic Business Network (CBN) Job Placement 
Networking
Promotion of Catholic Values at the Workplace

Business Owners and 
Professionals

5 Catholic Lawyers Guild (CLG) Free Legal Clinic Advice &  
Representation for those in need
Pro-Bono Mediation

All

6 Catholic Welfare Services (CWS) Counselling
Case Management

All

7 Clarity Singapore (Clarity) Counselling 
Group Therapy 
Psychotherapy

Mentally-distressed

8 Christian Family and Social
Movement (CFSM)

Programmes for Families Families

9 Family Life Society (FLS) Counselling
Case Management
Pregnancy Crisis Hotline & Services

Families 
Pregnant Mothers

10 Jesuit Refugee Service (JRS) 
Singapore

Anti-Human Trafficking Refugees and Trafficked 
Persons

11 Mamre Oaks Centre for Adults with Intellectual & 
Developmental Disabilities

Intellectually and  
Developmentally-disabled

12 Montfort Care Child Protection Services (Big Love)  
Cyber Addiction Counselling (MeToYou)
Senior Citizen Programme (Young-at-Heart!/YAH!)

Children
Youth 
Elderly

13 Society of St Vincent de Paul 
(SSVP)

Counselling
Case Management

All

14 Mount Alvernia Hospital Medical & Dental Services All
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Integrated Case Management 
Working closely together with each other and beyond the Caritas 
Singapore umbrella, our MOs serve the different needs of clients and 
provide support to individuals and families.

The following is just one of the many cases where our MOs collaborated 
and contributed to different aspects of a client’s care plan:

Aside from casework, the MOs at AV have worked closely together to 
conduct a corporate social responsibility event with IMG Group. The 
activities included a ‘door knocking’ outreach and baking sessions.

The largest collaborative effort was witnessed recently when the MOs 
co-organised a very important milestone of AV, its First Anniversary 
Celebration, which took place on 19 November 2016.

The Celebration was marked with an Open House, attracting around 
1,500 visitors, where a line up of talks, workshops, exhibition booths 
by the MOs and performances awaited them. Visitors gained insight 
into the services, programmes and activities at AV, whilst visiting 

A Story of Hope
*Mr Ang, a middle-aged, blue-collared Singaporean with four 
children of foreign citizenship, had to disrupt his family’s stable 
lifestyle; bringing them back to Singapore when his wife fell 
gravely-ill. After losing his wife and faced with a lack of resources, 
he had trouble providing a conducive environment and finding 
schools for his children.

Toa Payoh Polyclinic brought their plight to the attention of 
the Catholic Welfare Services (CWS). CWS, Archdiocesan 
Commission for the Pastoral Care of Migrants and Itinerant 
People (ACMI) and Boys’ Town worked together in an attempt to 
place the children in mainstream schools and to find alternative 
employment for Mr Ang. These organisations ensured that 
the children received counselling to help them manage these 
new changes, provided Art Therapy sessions, free tuition and 
even a hairstyling training course for the eldest child. These 
organisations continue to work together to support the family 
while empowering them with sustainable solutions.

*Not his real name

Collaboration 
with Member 
Organisations
Agape Village’s First
Anniversary Celebration

Participants of Upcycling programme, posing with 
their art pieces made out of recycled materials.

Family Life Society.

Catholic Business Network.

Wall mural of five loaves and two fishes.

YAH! Participants who performed at the AV’s 
First Anniversary Celebration.

Volunteers interacting with Visitors.

AGAPE VILLAGE - PARTNERING THE POOR, LIVING THE FAITH
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AV, an initiative of Caritas Singapore, was established to better 
serve not only individuals but also families-in-need. By integrating 
the resources and expertise of 14 MOs under the Caritas Singapore 
umbrella, together with AV’s geographic proximity in Toa Payoh and 
its shared space facilities, the MOs are able to operate in a more 
synergistic manner to serve their clients. This has resulted in faster 
response time and a more holistic care approach that has benefited 
the clients.

Through the support network at AV, the social worker fraternity within 
Caritas Singapore is strengthened. This network allows case workers, 
social workers, counsellors, psychologists and therapists from the 
various MOs to tap on the collective expertise and services among 
them, empowering each specialist to address a client’s different 
needs more effectively.

Over the past year AV has also significantly built and strengthened its 
partnership within the social service sector in the Bishan-Toa Payoh 
region, to achieve this mission. Continued efforts of collaboration, 
networking and community engagement have built a stronger support 
infrastructure for those in need. 

These activities include:

• Bishan-Toa Payoh Medical and Social Services Networking Event 
co-organised with National Healthcare Group, Care Corner and 
TOUCH Community Services.

• Visits and exchanges with Care Corner, National Council of Social 
Service, Ministry of Social and Family Development and Ministry 
of Education School Cluster.

• Engagements with schools such as St Joseph’s Institution, First 
Toa Payoh Primary School and CHIJ Our Lady of Good Counsel.

Bishan-Toa Payoh Medical and Social Services Partners Networking Event.

Integrating and 
Building a Social 
Ecosystem

ACMI Workshop for Volunteers and Foreign 
Domestic Workers by Clarity Singapore.

Looking into 2017:

• Silver Infocomm IT courses 
for the elderly (with 
Info-communications Media 
Development Authority) 

• Share-A-Pot @ AV for the 
elderly (with Alexandra Health 
System) 

• Night Café by CWS 

• Training in Hairstyling for the 
caregivers / less-privileged  

• Training in Web Design 
and Development for the 
less-privileged youth

Participants having lunch at Share-a-Pot @ AV 
Programme.

Voluntary Welfare Organisations had opportunities to explore 
collaboration with our MOs.

AGAPE VILLAGE - PARTNERING THE POOR, LIVING THE FAITH
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At AV we live by the Principles of Service derived from the Catholic 
Social Teaching. Our programmes and outreach efforts are aimed at 
ensuring that our beneficiaries receive the support required so that 
they can live their lives with dignity.

Here are examples of how we apply the principles in our daily work.

Our  MOs  are  mindful  that  the  ultimate  goal  is  not  to  create     
a dependency on support organisations but to improve the 
circumstances for beneficiaries so that they can play an active role 
in society. To this end, the Archdiocesan Commission for the Pastoral 
Care of Migrants and Itinerant People looks after the  pastoral  
needs and skills development of migrants in Singapore, Jesuit 
Refugee Services Singapore conducts training workshops overseas 
to help counter human trafficking, Montfort Care’s Young-at-Heart! 
Programme promotes life-long learning to the Mandarin-speaking 
elderly community.

The Share-A-Pot programme encourages elderly to eat healthy meals 
and to exercise. It has generally improved the physical well-being of 
the participants. At Mamre Oaks, adults with special needs are kept 
engaged and connected to society through various activities.

With our holistic case management approach, we are mindful of the 
need to strike a balance between longer term improvement and short 
term relief. As such, while the Society of St Vincent de Paul provides 
support to the needy, the Catholic Welfare Services offer sustainable 
solutions and relief to the homeless as well as skills upgrade training 
for better employability. The Mount Alvernia Hospital Outreach Medical 
& Dental Clinic provides needy individuals with basic health care, so 
that they can continue contributing to their families and society. Other 
organisations such as Boys’ Town and Catholic Business Network 
work towards the advancement of Catholic values and ethics in 
people’s lives, whilst nurturing the person through mentorship and 
sourcing for job placements.

At AV, beneficiaries can select programmes that fit their needs without 
having any values or framework imposed on them. For example, 
Clarity’s public talks cover a range of topics from mental health, 
psychotherapy to education. Family Life Society offers counselling 
for those who need pregnancy crisis services while Montfort Care’s 
MeToYou programme offers cyber addiction counselling.

We work toward equipping our beneficiaries and their families with 
skills to improve their quality of life. Abilities Beyond Limitations 
and Expectations’ Respite and Rehabilitation Centres reach out to 
the physically-challenged and their caregivers by providing self-care 
programmes, and rehabilitation therapy sessions. Christian Family 
and Social Movement focuses on building communities within families, 
while Montfort Care’s Big Love programme equips caregivers with 
practical parenting knowledge and skills, to protect the vulnerable 
young and preserve the family unit. 

Empowering rather than  
creating dependency
Services, programmes and any direct help 
provided to those in need should empower 
them to take responsibility and where possible 
reintegrate into society rather than foster a 
culture of dependency in them that keeps 
them in the poverty trap. 

Serving in a manner that 
upholds dignity
The design and provision of services and all 
process involved should be done or organised 
in a way that preserve or enhance the dignity 
of those being served. People providing 
such services must not be patronising or 
condescending and those being served should 
not be made to feel as if people are doing them 
a favour. 

Balance between longer  
term improvement and  
shorter term relief
Services should be designed to address 
immediate needs as well as longer term 
sustained improvement in the lives of those 
being served, creating a good balance 
between the two.

Choice and participation
Those being served and/or their families or 
caregivers should have a choice of services 
that they will receive and participate in making 
that choice with the relevant information. 

Personal and family  
responsibility
Those being served and/or their families 
or caregivers should tap on their resources 
and strengths where possible and take 
responsibility for the outcome of services that 
they seek and receive. 

Our 5 
Principles of 
Service

Share-A-Pot participants at @ AV Programme



Social Mission Conference 2016

Caritas Singapore
Social Mission Conference   2016

‘... because God has become human then,  

–  Cardinal Luis Antonio Tagle 
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The first Social Mission Conference (SMC) was inaugurated by Caritas 
Singapore in 2008 and is held every two years. The objective is to 
deepen our understanding of the Church’s social mission and social 
teaching as well as inspire all to live their faith more authentically, 
especially those involved in the area of social mission. 

This year’s SMC had the theme ‘Witness to Mercy, Bearer of 
Compassion’ and was held on 13 August 2016, at the Performing 
Arts Centre, Catholic Junior College, drawing 530 participants. 

His Eminence, Luis Antonio Gokim Cardinal Tagle, President of Caritas 
Internationalis and Archbishop of Manila was the keynote speaker at 
the conference.

Archbishop William Goh, in his opening address, said, “Caregivers 
need to grow in faith and human integrity if they truly want to help 
others.” His Grace also shared his vision and direction for social 
mission in the local church, focusing on two main areas – the formation 
and care of our social workers and caregivers and the character of  
Christian Charity. 

Four distinguished speakers provided insights at the SMC2016. 
Mr Zainal Bin Sapari, Assistant Secretary-General, National Trades 
Union Congress (NTUC); Associate Professor Teo You Yen, Division 
of Sociology, Nanyang Technological University; Mr Jonathan Chang, 
Executive Director, Lien Centre for Social Innovation, and Dr Christopher 
Cheok, Vice-chairman, Medical Board of the Institute of Mental Health. 

Topics covered included outsourcing as a business strategy and the 
challenges faced by our society, including low-wage workers, single-
parent families, the struggles of caregivers, the elderly and physically 
disabled, and people suffering from mental illnesses in Singapore. 

The speakers stressed the need for more initiatives to help the 
disadvantaged, including reducing the care gap of children from 
single-parent families and the removal of the stigma associated with 
mental illnesses.

During the panel discussion moderated by Mr Laurence Lien, 
Co-Founder of the Asia Philanthropy Circle, one participant asked if 
the problem of poverty was getting worse or better.

Mr Zainal replied, “There will always be low-wage workers due to the 
increasing cost of living, however there are improvements with regard 
to gross monthly income.”

In his Keynote Theological Reflection, His Eminence, Cardinal Tagle 

Witness to Mercy, 
Bearer of  Compassion

Archbishop William Goh giving his opening address to 
SMC participants at the conference.

Cardinal Tagle posing a question to the panel of 
speakers.
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encouraged all participants to stay hopeful - “We need to serve the 
poor primarily through a loving and hopeful disposition,” he said. 

On the theme, ‘Witness to Mercy, Bearer of Compassion’, Cardinal 
Tagle felt that what makes us witnesses is that we have seen, heard 
and been touched by the mercy of God. He compared the mercy of 
God to the meeting point of two streams – Compassion and Fidelity. 
Compassion is a deep bond while fidelity is rooted in God’s love for us, 
his faith with us, undeserving as we are. “Jesus emptied himself, of 
the glory of the divinity while remaining Son of God. ... He entered our 
human condition … He experienced all the temptations that we are 
subjected to. He is no longer the harsh judge but a compassionate 
brother because He became one of us. … you belong to me, we belong 
to each other. You are in my heart. We are brothers, we are sisters, we 
are one family.”

Cardinal Tagle encouraged us to open our hearts and face our own 
wounds so that we can embrace the wounds of others, “By denying 
our woundedness and our need for God’s mercy and the mercy of 
other people, our hearts become hard. Then we fail to understand. 
We fail to become compassionate, we become impatient and then we 
become agents of hurt rather than of healing.”

Participants also had the chance to ask Cardinal Tagle some 
questions during a dialogue session moderated by Jesuit Fr Colin Tan. 
One question asked was: “What would be your message to the world 
today? Especially when we see a lot of cynicism, a lot of despair and 
sufferings in the world.”

Cardinal Tagle responded that the church could be “a sign of hope by 
being a sign of disinterested love, a love that is just purely given, not 
because I can receive anything back. It gives a lot of light, of healing 
and a lot of hope to a broken world.”

To explore how to be bearers of compassion in our communities, 
neighbourhood and in society, six tracks were offered to the 
participants to join in for discussion: Caregivers, Elderly, Low-wage 
Workers, People with Physical Disabilities, People with Mental Health 
issues, and Single-parent Families. 

For each track, participants identified two key follow up actions that 
they felt were needed and achievable. This was then presented by Ms 
Janet Ang at the wrap-up session. Suggested action items included: 
the formation of an information hub centre for caregivers, exploring 
care-giving assistance to low-income and single-parent families, 
creating activities to promote social interaction among elderly who live 
alone, providing more public education and awareness programmes 
on mental health issues and support.

In closing, Ms Ang presented programmes and initiatives of Caritas 
Singapore and provided an update on the services available in Agape 
Village to help those in need.  

PRE-CONFERENCE  
EXPOSURE AND ENCOUNTER

A series of 22 different exposure 
programmes and events were 
organised by our Member Organ-
isations. 

Participants visited in-care 
patients and beneficiaries at 
the Assisi Hospice. They accom-
panied day-care intellectually  
disabled of Mamre Oaks in their 
baking sessions and assisted in 
CareNight sessions by Morning 
Star Community Services 
for children of lower-income 
families. 

They also visited the GoodLife 
Community Kitchen of Montfort 
Care for elderly persons living 
alone.

Panel of speakers taking turns to address questions 
from the participants. 

Participants at one of the six tracks on Caregivers, 
Elderly, Low-wage Workers, People with Physical 
Disabilities, People with Mental Health issues, and 
Single-parent Families.
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As an extension to the Social Mission Conference 2016, Caritas 
Singapore organised the Young Adults Mission of Mercy Event on 14 
August 2016 at Agape Village. Over 160 young adults aged between 
18 and 35 participated in the event.

Cardinal Luis Antonio Tagle was the main speaker at the event which 
started with a prayer and worship led by a group of musicians and 
prayer leaders from the Office of Young People. 

Cardinal Tagle structured his talk in the context of young adults 
and their stage of growth, especially in their desire to find their 
self-identity. He noted that “the basic tension in the life of a young 
adult is the tension between independence ... (and) intimacy. ... and 
when you look at them, they seem to collide. ... Yet, they must come 
together and the healthy person knows how or knows who he or she 
is, not because he or she has separated from the community but he 
or she grows as a person precisely because I am involved in the lives 
of others.”

On the topic of mercy, Cardinal Tagle told participants that mercy is 
not an abstract notion and they should not be afraid of God’s mercy. 
“God’s mercy is God’s way of saying ‘You are mine. You are mine. You 
are my child’. And it is by belonging to God, that we discover who we 
truly are... do not be ashamed to tell the world, you belong to God. And 
if because of pride, carelessness, you have been wounded, you have 
lost your way and cannot come home, ... admit it... wait to be found.”

The young adult participants then spent some time crafting their 
personal reflections on clay and paper. They offered their handiwork 
to God by symbolically placing them at the foot of the cross. 

In the second segment of the event, Cardinal Tagle talked about  
how in experiencing God’s mercy, it opens our hearts to the suffering 
of others. He also shared his own moving and personal experiences, 
as a seminarian, priest and president of Caritas Internationalis,  
his encounters with those who are wounded in many parts of the 
world, in the refugee camps, detention centres and earthquake 
affected areas. 

Participants also had opportunities to ask Cardinal Tagle some 
questions. One participant posed a question on how to view God’s 
mercy despite finding the Church teachings as harsh. Cardinal Tagle 
explained ‘that while some of the teachings of Christ are hard and 
may sound merciless... the deeper meaning is about conquering evil 
with good’. 

After the session, Cardinal Tagle celebrated Mass for those gathered.

The full transcript of Cardinal Tagle's speeches on 13 & 14 August is 
available on our website at www.caritas-singapore.org
 

A young adult participant sticking her reflection note 
on the glass wall of the hall.

Young adult participants offering their clay craft 
reflections at the foot of the cross.

Young adults having a conversation with Cardinal 
Tagle.
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How can we eliminate absolute poverty in 
Singapore through core policy reform and costs?

The missing picture - 
people left out of  the 

Singapore dream

Speaker: Yeoh Lam Keong

What are the latest social 
assistance policies and 

programmes in Singapore?
Speaker: Kong Kum PeckSpeaker: Radha Basu
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Hopeful People, 

In May 2012, Caritas Singapore initiated the first RoundTable 
discussion on poverty after the Study of the Poor in 2010/2011 
which revealed the multiple issues faced by low-income families and 
raised the issue of inter-generational poverty and social immobility 
among the poor.

The subsequent RoundTables provided a general review of poverty 
landscape and community response to poverty in Singapore.  

This year’s Caritas RoundTable 4 (RT4) held on 23 July 2016, acted 
as a lead up to the Caritas Social Mission Conference in August. The 
RT4 viewed the lives of ordinary people within the bigger Singapore 
environment. Experts passionate about their work and concerned for 
the poor, examined the circumstances of people living at the bottom 
of Singapore’s society over the past four years or more. 

There is a persistent core of about 125,000 households of working 
poor, unemployed poor and elderly poor. This was partly due to the 
influx of migrant workers which suppressed wages, keeping them 
below the levels that people in these households need to live decently. 

Despite recent improvements in social policies and assistance 
schemes such as Silver Support, Medishield Life and the Pioneer 
Generation Package which aims to address the needs of this strata 
of society, gaps still persist. Certain elderly poor, single parent/
grandparent, working poor who struggle with major illnesses or 
special needs fall through these gaps.

Participants at RT4 spoke from personal experience sharing their 
stories of indignities. 

A mother with a child with special needs and another child with 
health problems shared that she was told to go out to work when 
she sought assistance at a Social Service Office. Another participant  
reflected that pressing aid on a homeless person instead of asking 
what is needed could reflect a lack of respect for his dignity. These 
experiences and reflections reveal the real gaps in our approach to 
the poor and in addressing poverty. Being treated by their fellowmen 
with dignity is as paramount to the poor as it is to the rest of us.

Caritas RoundTable 4 was a platform for animated discussions for  
the 80 participants. It enabled them to see the ‘big picture’,  
identifying the struggles of the poor while respecting their dignity 
when offering social assistance - to nourish the hope of the poor for 
a more dignified life.

125,000
HOUSEHOLDS IN SINGAPORE

LIVE IN POVERTY

80,000 HOUSEHOLDS

64%
WORKING

POOR

25,000 HOUSEHOLDS

20%
ELDERLY

POOR

20,000 HOUSEHOLDS

16%
UNEMPLOYED

POOR

Participants at the Caritas RoundTable 4 on the 23 
July 2016 which examined the significance of the 
ordinary people in the bigger Singapore environment.

Source: Household Economic Survey of  2014 (based on 
data surveyed in 2013), analysed by Yeoh Lam Keong
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KNOWING CHRIST, KNOWING  
CATHOLIC SOCIAL TEACHING

REFLECTING CHRIST IN SERVICE

GIVING VOICE TO CHRIST IN THE POOR

LIVING CHRIST IN OUR PARISHES

 

STRENGTHENING 
ORGANISATIONAL CAPABILITIES
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Membership 
and Capacity Building 
Caritas Singapore organises regular events and formation workshops 
for the 25 Member Organisations (MOs) under our umbrella (see 
pages 48–49 for the list and profiles of MOs. Regular meetings, 
events and retreats are organised with the MOs so as to have the 
opportunity for dialogue, to build stronger ties among themselves, to 
identify needs and common issues and to collaborate on key work 
areas within the Caritas family. 

At the Leaders’ Council Meeting in March, we shared with the leaders 
and discussed Caritas Singapore’s strategic plans for the next three 
years which was developed after the board retreat and review in 
January 2015.  

The leaders also discussed the forthcoming Social Mission 
Conference 2016 and MOs’ participation and support for pre- and 
post-exposure programmes for potential participants. Leaders were 
also updated on the volunteer management system and significant 
milestones of MOs.

The biennial Leaders’ Retreat held in May 2016 in Johore Bahru was 
attended by leaders from 19 MOs and with support from Caritas 
board, Formation and Membership committees. The theme was 
‘Living Mercy’ in line with the Jubilee Year of Mercy.  

Rev Fr David Garcia, OP, the Retreat Master led the leaders in a spirit-
filled retreat with insights on “What is Mercy?”. Mercy is the very 
heart of Our Father and the signature of the power of God. It is the 
essence of our mission to serve the poor as “God prefers the poor, 
so did Jesus, so must the Church”. We are all called to a mercy which 
transforms life, to respond in a way which affirms and restores the 
person who receives mercy, his dignity. 

Leaders were able to experience God’s mercy during the Sacrament 
of Reconciliation and Eucharistic celebration.  

The retreat provided an opportunity to interact and to bond during the 
meals and informal sessions.

This year’s Staff appreciation high tea was held in the newly opened 
Agape Village for staff of MOs, with a conducted tour of Agape Village 
and a sharing of the work undertaken and the services offered.

During the year we worked closely with Formation Committee to identify, 
develop and provide staff and leadership formation programmes. 
This year three Staff Induction workshops, two Discipleship Retreats 
and one Building the Kingdom Together workshop were held for 

Leaders from Member Organisations attending the 
1st Leader Council Meeting held in March 2016.

Leaders discussing what Mercy means to them 
individually during the Biennial Leaders’ Retreat 
2016 in Johore Bahru.

The annual staff appreciation Hi-tea held at the 
newly opened Agape Village where participants did 
a self-introduction.
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“ It is a touching experience 
visiting the charities that 
our church supports through 
Caritas.  God’s love is shown 
through the works that 
Morning Star and ABLE do 
for those in need regardless of  
their race and religion. ”
- Frank Wong
Board of  Trustees

Grant Making 
Funds raised by Caritas Singapore are disbursed through a formal 
grant making process that covers stages of early engagement, 
application, evaluation, approval, agreement, disbursement and 
monitoring. Applications for grants from the different groups were 
made in two window periods in a year and these grant applications 
were reviewed by the Grants Committee and approved by the Board 
of Caritas Singapore and the Board of Agape Fund Trustees. A total 
sum of $5,089,382 was disbursed in the past year (see box below).

the MOs.  The focus for these workshops is on how Catholic Social 
Teaching can be applied within MOs in relation to staff, volunteers 
and beneficiaries.  Regular visits were made to the MOs to network 
and participate in their events. 

The Trustees visited two MOs, Morning Star Community Services 
(MSCS) and Abilities Beyond Limitations and Expectations (ABLE) 
to get familiar with the board members and further understand to a 
greater extent their work and new initiatives. 

The visits helped the Trustees see the areas that Caritas Singapore 
can bring value and support to the MOs for it to better carry out its 
work and expand its outreach programmes.

“The grant received from 
Caritas takes away our 
worries about funding our 
operations.  This allows us to 
fully focus our attention on our 

of  their needs.” 
Michael Charles Loh
Executive Director
Catholic AIDS 
Response Effort

2016 Grants Disbursement

Organisation Amount($) 

Abilities Beyond Limitations and Expectations 
Limited (ABLE) 560,000 

Archdiocesan Commission for the Pastoral 
Care of Migrants & Itinerant People (ACMI) 450,000 

Assisi Hospice 10,000 

Boys’ Town Singapore 650,000 

Canossaville Children’s Home 10,000 

Catholic Aids Response Effort 265,000 

Caritas Humanitarian Aid & Relief Initiatives 
Singapore (CHARIS) 180,000 

Clarity Singapore 230,000 

Catholic Welfare Services (CWS) 397,782 

Family Life Society 700,000 

Infant Jesus Homes & Children’s Centres 375,000 

Mamre Oaks 70,000 

Montfort Care 406,000 

Morning Star Community Services 485,000 

Roman Catholic Prison Ministry 100,000 

Parish Charitable Works 200,600 

Total 5,089,382 
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Mamre Oaks clients reaping their vegetable  
harvest at the Agape Village rooftop farm

Montfort Care's "MeToYou" - a Cyber wellness 
programme for youths

Charis volunteers assisting in toilet building & 
bio-sand building in Sri Lanka

 
while on medical mission to Cambodia

ACMI's Baking Class at Agape Village
YAH!'s rouli ball interest group activity  

at Agape Village
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Fundraising 
Caritas Singapore raises a common pool of funds to support the 
charitable work undertaken by our Catholic social and community 
organisations to help the needy. We do this through fundraising 
events, a GIRO platform for sustained giving and the Giving.sg 
platform for online donations and fundraising projects organised by 
friends of Caritas Singapore.

Charities Week remains our main fundraising project. It is carried out 
during Lent through the distribution of appeal envelopes at parishes, 
Catholic schools and foreign Catholic communities. 2016’s Charities 
Week raised more than $5.8 million from parishes, Catholic schools 
and business enterprises.

The Down Memory Lane 6 Charity Dinner Show was organised in 
conjunction with Caritas Singapore’s 10th year anniversary raised 
$358,000. The event brought together our Member Organisations, 
partners, sponsors and beneficiaries, all weaved into the theme of 
Faith, Hope and Love.

Caritas Singapore Golf for Charity was held at Tanah Merah Country 
Club, Garden Course on 24 August 2016 with Mr Lim Boon Heng 
(Chairman Temasek Holdings) as guest-of-honour. It raised a gross 
amount of $193,000.

The campaign for Singapore Power Mailer insert ran as an avenue to 
raise the awareness of Caritas in the broader community over time and 
a net of $35,000 was raised between October 2015 to March 2016. 

Four fundraising campaigns were started on Giving.sg portal which 
raised a total of $151,000 between December 2015 to October 2016. 
Giving.sg is a donation portal operated by the National Volunteer and 
Philanthropy Centre (NVPC). It allows donors to search for charitable 
causes and charities that serve them. 

Buy A Meal for your Neighbour raised $11,000 – Every $10 donated, 
goes towards buying a meal for a neighbour and helping to support 
programmes at Agape Village.

Agape Village – Partnering the Poor raised $121,458 – donors can 
support to make a financial donation and join us in our mission 
to partner the poor, marginalised and people limited by difficult 
circumstances in our community.

Give A Gift That Matters raised $4,220 - a campaign inspired by the 
experiences of a beneficiary helped by Abilities Beyond Limitations 
and Expectations (ABLE).

Cor Novum: A New Heart  raised $19,721 – a choir from the Church of 
the Holy Family organised this choral fundraiser for Caritas Singapore 
on 23 October 2016.

Cor Novum: A New Heart - a choral fundraiser for 
Caritas Singapore, organise by a choir from the 
Church of the Holy Family.

MediaCorp actor and actress Huang Shinan and wife 
Pan Lingling posing for the Golf for Charity 2016.

Donation of $30,000 from the Office of Philip Loh.

Dancing to the tunes of the 80's at the Down Memory 
Lane 6 Charity Dinner Show 2016.
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Programme
Collections  

$
Direct  

Costs $
Indirect  
Costs $

Total Fundraising 
Costs $

Fundraising 
Ratio %

Government Care & 
Share Matching Grant 2,000,000 - - - -

Charities Week 2016 5,830,659 24,353 69,569 93,922 1.6

Sustained Giving (GIRO) 446,223 377 5,798 6,175 1.4

SP Mailer Insert 119,243 53,400 - 53,400 44.8

Others 2,882,421 87,000 21,257 108,257 3.8

Total 11,278,546 165,130 96,624 261,754 2.3

DISTRICT PARISH 2016 S$ 2015 S$

City St Joseph’s Church (Victoria Street) 261,219 250,541

Church of Sts Peter & Paul 25,585 34,466

Church of Our Lady of Lourdes 17,270 18,640

Church of the Sacred Heart 71,098 48,612

Church of St. Teresa 92,456 81,291

Church of St. Bernadette 432,900 396,553

Church of St. Michael 56,090 53,970

East Church of the Holy Family 504,256 459,817

Church of Our Lady Queen of Peace 149,899 196,321

Church of St. Stephen 71,502 51,752

Church of Our Lady of Perpetual Succour 324,218 325,788

Church of the Holy Trinity 119,367 149,368

Church of the Divine Mercy 124,210 130,928

West Church of St. Ignatius 792,075 585,811

Blessed Sacrament Church 69,322 85,465

Church of St. Mary of the Angels 95,662 116,645

Church of St. Francis of Assisi 36,481 40,183

Church of the Holy Cross 685,442 585,798

North Church of St. Joseph (Bukit Timah) 99,312 72,064

Church of St. Anthony 18,615 25,078

Church of the Holy Spirit 287,995 323,575

Church of the Risen Christ 127,263 138,475

Church of Our Lady Star of the Sea 58,280 53,899

Church of Christ the King 160,919 145,837

Serangoon Church of the Nativity of the BVM 89,883 114,913

Church of the Immaculate Heart of Mary 196,706 243,778

Church of St. Francis Xavier 243,142 330,790

St. Anne’s Church 92,606 130,427

Church of St. Vincent de Paul 134,389 127,000

Others Schools 69,141 159,131

Business And Other Donors 322,928 355,649

GRAND TOTAL 5,830,231 5,832,565

Fundraising Programmes

Charities Week 2016
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Formation

Fr David Garcia conducting a session on Personal 
Moral Compass – a 42-week course on Moral Theology 
which covers topics on the Ethics of Sex, Bioethics 
and Social Justice.

Formation resource books:  Labourers of the Harvest, 
Salt of Earth, Giving Hope and Compendium of the 
Social Doctrine of the Church which are used for the 
various  Formation programmes and group sharing.

FORMATION OF MEMBER
ORGANISATIONS/VOLUNTEERS

LIVING MERCY RETREAT
44 participants

BUILDING THE
KINGDOM TOGETHER

40 participants

INDUCTION WORKSHOPS
32 participants

DISCIPLESHIP RETREAT
36 participants

FORMATION FOR PARISHES

CATHOLIC SOCIAL
TEACHINGS WORKSHOP

15 participants

LIVING OUR FAITH IN
COMMUNITY WORKSHOP
32 participants

PERSONAL
MORAL COMPASS

282 participants

AGAPE EXPERIENCE
486 participants

The Caritas Singapore Formation Committee aims to promote 
and raise awareness of the Catholic Social Teachings (CST) and 
its application to our Member Organisations (MOs) and the wider 
Catholic Community so that we may have a deeper understanding 
of the central role we should play in our society and how we may 
contribute to the common good.

In 2016 we provided over 30-hours of training and workshops 
conducted over a total of six sessions throughout the year and held a 
three-day retreat for our MOs.

Some of the key formation programmes include:
•  Living Mercy Retreat - a three-day stay-in retreat for leaders to gain an 

in-depth understanding  of the power of God's transformational mercy 
in their lives and how they can build a culture of mercy within their 
organisations.

•  Building the Kingdom Together – a six-hour workshop conducted over 
a period of two weeks provided formation for our leaders and in-depth 
knowledge of the CST and its application. 

•  Induction Workshop - a three-hour workshop for new staff of MOs to 
introduce the Caritas family and its principles of service which are 
derived from the CST. 

•  Discipleship Retreat – targeted at staff and volunteers, this one-day 
retreat conducted by Fr Ambrose Vaz provided a deeper understanding 
on the biblical aspects of discipleship and servant leadership. 

For our parish communities, we provided over 100-hours of training 
programmes and workshops:

•  Catholic Social Teachings Workshop – a one-day workshop using case 
studies of real-life scenarios discussed through the lens of the CST. 

•  Living Our Faith in Community Workshop - this new initiative is a 
five-hour programme aimed at Catholic communities on a journey 
towards discipleship.  It introduces CST and its application to daily 
living in faith with an awareness of the need to integrate life and faith.  
It is planned as a launch pad with follow up within the communities.

•  Personal Moral Compass – a 42-week course on Moral Theology 
conducted by Fr David Garcia, which covered topics on the Ethics of 
Sex, Bioethics and Social Justice. This year, the course was held at 
Agape Village for the first time. 

•  Agape Experience – held over 12 Saturdays, we provided support for 
this new initiative. Spear-headed by the Parish Engagement Committee 
it is aimed at engaging youths who are preparing for the Sacrament 
of Confirmation in the parishes. It introduced them to key concepts 
on the dignity of the Human Person, Common Good and the Social 
Mission of the Church. Participants were given a tour of Agape Village 
with a showcase of the services provided by the MOs in partnering 
the poor. 

The Formation Committee conducted a review of our programmes 
to evaluate their impact, ensure their alignment to the CST and the 
optimal use of resources.
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Young adult volunteers helping to organise the 
children for photo-taking at the Morning Star 
Community Services Christmas Party 2015.

Rev Fr David Garcia, OP. explaining the church 
teachings on marriage and how families have an 
important role in being instruments of mercy to 
others in society.

Creed On The Street is a bi-annual night session 
providing a platform for young adults to discuss social 
issues in the light of their faith.

Young Adults 
The Caritas Singapore Young Adults Committee was formalised 
in October 2012 to inculcate faith and social responsibility among 
Catholic Young Adults through four strategic thrusts - Educating; 
Inspiring, Facilitating; Training and Developing.

This year, various formation sessions were organised to help our young 
Catholics strengthen their faith and involvement in the social mission 
of the Church.  The Young Adults Committee and its sub-committees 
relating to Volunteer Management, Formation and Outreach & 
Communications, met on 5 March for a Day of Recollection conducted 
by Fr Christopher Soh, SJ. Fr Soh helped participants to discern how 
they can be ‘Rivers of Mercy’ to others in need.

Workshop sessions included ‘Recognising the Voice of Love in a 
Broken World’ by Fr Christopher Soh, SJ on 28 November 2015 and 
‘Building the Kingdom: The Spirituality and Mission of the Family’ by Fr 
David Garcia, OP on 14 May 2016. Young adults from various parishes 
met to reflect on the Church’s social teachings, their relationship 
with God, their personal responses to social issues and their roles in 
bringing Christ to the world. 

On 17 March and 26 September 2016, two nights of formation 
discussions were held – ‘Creed on the Street’, a continuation of the 
Creed on the Street series of previous years, a platform for participants 
to examine social issues that are important to them. Topics included 
‘Families as Missionaries of Mercy’ and ‘Technology – a help or 
hindrance in our relationship with God and others’. Groups of 16 to 
20 young adults shared their views, knowledge and concerns on the 
topics. Eager to hear the Church’s stand and teachings, participants 
were also keen to put ideas into action. 

Various volunteering opportunities were organised throughout the 
year to enable our young adults to spread hope and mercy to others. 
The committee collaborated with the Catholic Welfare Services on 
their on-going Friday night outreach programme, which reaches out 
to those living on the streets. Through these ‘Night Missions’, many 
young adults were touched by their experiences through these 
encounters.

For those keen to spend time with people in need, they assisted with 
ACMI’s course registrations and volunteered with various programmes 
in Agape Village including the Agape Experience Programme. Yet 
another group volunteered as game masters to bring fun and laughter 
to the Morning Star Children’s Christmas Party in December 2015.

The committee promoted their programmes and events by reaching 
out to young adult communities in various parishes. The committee 
members also connected with the Office for Young People (OYP) which 
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Parish Engagement 
In February 2016, a new initiative, the Parish Engagement was 
launched by the Caritas Board to engage, collaborate and support 
parish groups in living out their social mission and reach out to the 
most vulnerable in society. 

Board members, Fr. John Paul and Benedict Cheong assumed the 
role of coordinators, connecting and collaborating with the parishes, 
to leverage on the collective strengths and resources. Together with 
the support from two friars, two staff and a volunteer; the committee 
has grown to include four committed volunteers.

They initiated a one-day programme, the ‘Agape Experience’ (AE) for 
confirmation year students from the parishes. Each session is now 
run by two staff, two friars and about fifteen volunteers.

The AE programme begins with praise and worship followed by a 
presentation of the brief history of the 200 year old Catholic Church 
in Singapore. It looks at the works of evangelisation by foreign 
missionaries  through helping the poor, educating the young, training 
locals in nursing, and caring for the sick and abandoned babies. 

Confirmands participated in skits portraying the lives of the average 
domestic helper and the elderly relative to help them understand 
the plight and needs of these persons who may actually be part 
of their own home environment. They also gain knowledge on the 
Catholic Church’s Social Teaching pertaining to the Sacrament of 
Confirmation. The programme emphasises the importance of a 

offers support by promoting these events to their own communities.

In the same vein, roadshows were held at four different parishes this 
year to promote the Mission of Mercy event and to reach out to young 
adult communities at the Church of St Ignatius, Church of the Nativity 
of the Blessed Virgin Mary, Church of the Holy Trinity and Church of 
the Holy Family.  
 
The highlight of the year for the Young Adults Committee was 
definitely the ‘Young Adults Mission of Mercy Event 2016’ held on 
14 August 2016, a post-Social Mission Conference event for young 
adults. The speaker for the event was His Eminence Cardinal Tagle, 
who spoke passionately about God’s mercy in our lives and how we 
can be bearers of compassion in our society today. 

The 161 young adult participants pondered the Cardinal’s messages 
during the reflection sessions. Praise and workshop sessions were 
conducted by members of the music ministry of the Office for  
Young People. 

(Please see the SMC section of the Annual Report for further details.)

Confirmands, dressed up for a skit to be presented 
to the group to teach them about human dignity and 
compassion.

Confirmands, catechists and facilitators at the Agape 
Experience programme.

Rev Fr Christopher Soh, SJ. conducting a workshop on 
‘Recognising the Voice of Love in a Broken World’ for 
young adult participants.
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A thriving hydroponic system at Agape Village, setup 
by the Franciscan Friars to introduce concepts of  
‘Care for Creation’ or ‘Laudato Si’ to the AE participants.

catholic’s responsibility in living out their Christian lives. 

AE programme also introduces the ‘Care for Creation’ or ‘Laudato Si’ 
through simple and yet effective ways of a hydroponic system. 

Through videos, hands-on activities and various presentations and 
practical experiences, the volunteers showcased the work of Caritas 
and the various services of its Member Organisations (MOs) offered 
at Agape Village in reaching out to the poor and those in need. 

The AE programme concludes with a para-liturgy to reinforce the gift of 
the Sacrament of Confirmation, appreciation for discipleship in action 
and what it means to belong to the Catholic Church in Singapore.

For 2016, we reached out to 13 parishes, 489 confirmands with a 
total of 562 participants including accompanying catechists for this 
programme - slightly less than 50% of the total parishes in Singapore. 
Out of 13 parishes, 7 brought more than 50% of their confirmands 
for AE while the remaining 6 parishes brought in under 50% of their 
confirmands.  

The AE programme is the start of a new paradigm of collaboration 
with parishes, religious, laity and MOs at the Agape Village. It has 
received positive feedback from participating parishes and we hope 
that catechists will continue to see the benefits of this programme 
and incorporate it into their confirmation programme. 

Participating Parish Date of  
Programme

Actual No of  
Confirmands

Actual No of  
Catechists

Total No of 
Participants

Church of St Vincent De Paul 23/4/2016 33 4 37

Church of Our Lady Star of the Sea 30/4/2016 44 7 51

Church of St Mary of the Angels 28/5/2016 31 6 37

Church of St Bernadette 9/7/2016 6 3 9

Church of the Holy Cross 23/7/2016 47 10 57

Church of the Risen Christ 30/7/2016 38 4 42

Church of St Francis of Assisi 6/8/2016 19 3 22

St Anne’s Church 20/8/2016 
27/8/2016 91 8 99

Church of St Anthony 3/9/2016 31 4 35

Church of the Divine Mercy 10/9/2016 35 7 42

Church of St Michael 15/10/2016 14 4 18

Church of the Nativity of the BVM 22/10/2016 57 9 66

Church of Our Lady of Perpetual Succour 1/10/2016 43 4 47
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After a year’s hiatus, Caritas took the pulse of poverty on the 
ground within the broader social context at the Caritas RoundTable 
4 organised by the Advocacy and Research Committee (ARC) in July 
2016 (see pages 29-30). 

In addition, for 2016 the ARC channelled much of its energy into 
research with the objective of enabling Caritas to be the authentic, 
credible and responsible voice for the poor, supporting them in 
speaking out for themselves. 

The ARC strengthened its research capability with Member 
Organisations (MOs) representatives from ACMI, Boys’ Town, Clarity 
and Montfort Care.  A Research Sub-committee was set up to drive 
research plans, beginning with the sharing of research interests, 
challenges and support needed by MOs. 

To leverage on external research resources, ARC members attended 
various sessions by the National Council of Social Services and the 
NUS Social Service Research Centre to explore possible collaborations 
on future research projects which are helpful for MOs who require 
research expertise and resources.

With Agape Village up and running, the ARC Research Sub-committee 
began to explore the utilisation of the data being collected by the 
Integrated Case Management System (ICMS). One purpose would be 
to identify poverty trends over time - every six, 12 or 18 months or 
longer, to enable Caritas to advocate for specific vulnerable groups 
and about emerging service gaps. This data helps Caritas assess 
the effectiveness of the integrated service model at Agape Village 
in partnering individuals and families to get back on their feet 
financially or otherwise. Caritas MOs would also be able to evaluate 
the effectiveness of their services and the impact they are making.

Early into the third year of the Caritas campaign, ‘Singaporeans 
Against Poverty’ (SGAP), the ARC added an online game about poverty 
to its resource kit. PING! (Poverty Is Not a Game!) is the story of Ah 
Ma, an energetic elderly grandmother, her ups and downs as well as 
the lifelines in her life. Two more characters are in the making – a 
young person with mental health issues and a single mother. The full 
launch of PING! will be in 2017. 

The $5 Challenge remains popular with tertiary students involved in 
various poverty awareness raising and community service projects. 
Together with the original set of videos and PING!, the $5 Challenge 
are the components of the SGAP resource kit. The resource kit will 
come in handy when the ARC works with MOs to encourage target 
groups in parish communities to build real relationship with the poor 
and marginalised groups in our midst in 2017. 

Advocacy 
and Research 

Components of the SGAP resource kit which aims 
to raise awareness about poverty in developed and 
affluent Singapore, giving a voice to Christ in the poor 
and inspiring individuals to reach out beyond their 
comfort zones to show concern and care to the most 
vulnerable amongst us. 
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Communications 
In 2016, the Communications Committee provided editorial and 
publicity for Caritas’ and Agape Village’s activities in the Catholic News 
and Hai Sing Pao. Support was extended for a variety of corporate 
and marketing communications materials such as Down Memory 
Lane 6, Agape Village’s 1st Anniversary celebration, Charities’ Week, 
Annual Report and the alignment of corporate materials to achieve a 
harmonised corporate identity. 

The Communications Committee had the  privilege of commissioning 
the Corporate Videos for Caritas Singapore. This journey of searching 
and distilling the essence of Caritas saw us working closely with 
our Member Organisations (MOs), staff, Board members, Church 
leadership and the appointed vendor, PixelMusica. 

The central message of the video was aptly summed up by Pope 
Francis’ call for “… a church that is poor and for the Poor.” Caritas 
Singapore’s mission is to bring Christ’s love to the most vulnerable 
in our midst through partnership with our MOs and the wider helping 
community. The meaningful crafting of this message to the audience 
was made real through the portrayal of the stories of individuals who 
had been assisted by our MOs – the woman who was sold for $300 
as a child and grateful for a roof now; the daughter struggling to care 
for an aged parent and found relief  through volunteers; the prisoner 
who was given a leg-up to be integrated into society. Their stories 
help to make an emotional connection to our audience on the work 
of Caritas.

The universality of Caritas’ mission and the call to serve all were 
thoughtfully filmed through the many activities of our  MOs, especially 
at Agape Village which serves as an eco-system of many hands 
partnering the poor. The images reflect the Catholic Social Teachings 
which are fundamental to the operations of Caritas, in particular, 
the dignity of the human person and the principles of association,  
solidarity and participation. The joyful cooking sessions by members 
of Mamre Oaks and our elderly waltzing in the dance studio were 
just examples of how every human person in whatever stage of our 
development is of infinite dignity. As one human family, we are called 
to direct our gifts, talents and resources towards the well-being of 
individuals especially the vulnerable. 

The final theme of the video was the making of stained glass windows 
in a church. It depicts Caritas as the frame that holds the beautiful 
pieces of glass together to form the image of the Good Shepherd.   
As the sun shines, the love and the light of Christ flows through and 
it becomes visible and comforting to all around. Every member of 
Caritas with its area of expertise is an important piece of the stained 
glass and together we are the merciful and compassionate face of 
Jesus that brings his love, hope and peace to the poor, oppressed, 
afflicted and abandoned in our community.

Articles featured in Catholic News and Hai Sing Pao.

Souvenir magazines for Caritas Singapore Golf for 
Charity and Down Memory Lane 6.

Brochures and other marketing materials.

Corporate Video featuring Agape Village.

Caritas Singapore Corporate Video.
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Caritas Singapore and its Member Organisations (MOs) believe that 
volunteers are critical in achieving our mission. Effective volunteer 
engagement is essential to ensure that our volunteers are happy, 
engaged and spirit-filled. 

To provide support to the MOs, Caritas brought on board a full-time 
volunteer coordinator to implement an effective and consistent 
volunteer management system to fulfil the volunteering needs of 
Caritas Singapore and its MOs both within and outside Agape Village.

Caritas Singapore's Volunteer Policy was also shared with MOs for 
adoption or incorporation. A Volunteer Handbook as well as Standard 
Operating Procedures to manage the volunteers in a consistent 
manner will also be developed in 2017.

The first volunteer induction training on Caritas Singapore and the 
work of its MOs is targeted for first quarter 2017.

A team from Deloitte is implementing a Volunteer Management 
System software for Caritas Singapore on a pro-bono basis. MOs at 
Agape Village were consulted for their requirements and volunteer 
management needs in the pilot software which is targeted to go live 
in December 2016.

Volunteer-led programme - Share-A-Pot @ Agape Village
On 15 June 2016, Agape Village launched its first volunteer-led 
community-based programme, Share-A-Pot @ Agape Village (SaP@AV). 

Organised in collaboration with Alexandra Health System, it is 
designed to reach out to elderly who are left alone at home when 
their children head out for work during the day. It is founded on the 
principles of good nutrition, together with physical activities in a 
social environment to “build bones, brawn (muscle), brain (cognitive 
reserve) and bonds.” 

SaP@AV is run by 30 to 35 volunteers every Wednesdays from 10am 
to 12pm for over 75 participants. 

Volunteer Management  

“Volunteering at Agape 
Village enables me to see what 
the Diocese is doing for the 
elderly, the poor and the lowly. 
...This is the way to new 
evangelisation; reaching out to 
others through deeds and not 
just words.” 

–  Ms Sylvia Lee, volunteers at Agape Village 
for the weekly Share-A-Pot programme and 
other events.

“Volunteering at Caritas 

volunteering goes beyond 
providing the needy with 
appropriate skill sets, and 
should involve celebrating their 
achievements and new-found 
knowledge. ” 
–  Mr Loh Yi Cheng, volunteered his photog-

raphy skills for various CBN, ACMI and 
Caritas events during his University semester 
break from May to September 2016.

350
MORE THAN ACTIVE

VOLUNTEERS

240
MORE THANMatched to either regular

or ad-hoc volunteering
opportunities within

Caritas Singapore and its
member organisations

Share-A-Pot participants enjoying the nutritious meal and fitness activities at Agape Village .
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Integrated Case Management 
System (ICMS) Overview
The Integrated Case Management System (ICMS) is a consistent, 
holistic, integrated client-centric approach in supporting the work of a 
Case Manager and social service providers. 

To support the client management process, ICMS provides timely and 
effective information about a client and his entire household to the 
relevant Member Organisations (MOs) in Agape Village or external 
agencies. Prior to this, all MOs were managing their clients within 
their own systems. 

Benefits of the Integrated Case Management System
• One-time collection of personal particulars and issues and 

produces a snapshot of the individual at any one stage of  
his/her issue.

• Improves coordination and level of care given to the clients since 

Clients also receive additional help and support from external 
agencies through referrals.

• Raises the professionalism of case workers.
• Enhances delivery in current mission while expanding ability to 

participate in a wider community.

can be anonymised.
• Reviews an individual’s trajectory including historical data.
• Provides statistics on Gender / Age / Race Distribution.

Statistics from August 2015 to December 2016 which 
were compiled for reporting and research.

CASE ISSUE SUMMARY

30.8%

1.7%

2.4%

4.2%

7.7%

11.9%

14.9%

17.1%

PARENTING
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MENTAL HEALTH
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DISABILITY
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CARE GIVING ISSUES
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IMMIGRATION

0.2%

0.2%

0.4%

0.5%

0.6%

0.8%

0.9%

0.9%

1.1%

1.1%

1.3%

1.3%
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OTHERS  8%

% OF ISSUES AT
INTAKE LOCATION

AGAPE VILLAGE

0.6% 
ART THERAPY

0.9% CENTRE
SERVICES & ACTIVITIES 

4.6% 
SOCIAL SERVICES

27.5% 
COUNSELLING 

& ADVICE

0.9% COMMUNITY 
RESOURCES

0.9% COUPLE/
FAMILY THERAPY

0.9% RESIDENTIAL
SERVICES

3.8% 
LEGAL ADVICE

12.4% 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

38.6% 
PREGNANCY

CRISIS SERVICE

13.3% 
PSYCHOTHERAPY
/ COUNSELLING

SERVICES SOUGHT

0.3% 
REHABILITATION
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• Services sought / Social / Family support.
• Employment / transportation needs.

medical / relationships.
• Research into the problems and issues affecting the poor.

The diagram below shows the ICMS workflow and collaboration amongst MOs and External Agencies.

Integrated Case Management Process

EXISTING
CASE

Individual MOs
to Formulate 
Care Plan

Multiple Issues Emerge
Refer to Relevant MO

Input CIG

AV RECEPTIONIST

1st Point of Contact
& Analysis (CWS Staff)

Identify Primary Issue
and Needs Assessment

Needs Identified
Refer to Appropriate MOs
for Individual Care Plan

(ICP Intervention(s)

FLS
SSVP

Montfort Care
(Child Protection)

ABLE
ACMI

Boys’ Town
(Youth Reach)

Clarity
CWS
CLG

Mamre Oaks

Evaluation
Is Care Plan Succesful?

YES

Issue Status (I&R)
Complete - Successful / Goals Achieved

Complete Relevant Statistics for Reporting and Research
( Respective MOs will Report on Individual Caseload Including Common Clients )

STAKEHOLDERS / CARITAS MEMBER ORGANISATIONS (MOs)

NEW CASE

Referrals to
External State Agencies

when needed

Issue Status (I&R)
In Progress

Review Case Plan

Issue Status (I&R)
Incomplete - Goals

Cannot Achieve

NO

1

3

2

1 All New Cases and Referral Cases will be processed by the 1st Point of Contact and Assessment Team (CWS) 

2
Manager to process the case.

3
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Shared Services and Support
Caritas Singapore seeks to synergise resources across our many 
Catholic social and community organisations, and enhance 
service delivery through collaboration. We encourage our Member 
Organisations (MOs) to work together.

The social mission of the Church focuses on the outreach to the poor 
and those in need in the broader community, regardless of race, 
religion or nationality. MOs of Caritas Singapore serve over 50,000 
beneficiaries in various areas of needs:

The Poor, Sick, Elderly and Destitute

• Catholic Welfare Services • Society of St Vincent de Paul

People with Disabilities or Special Needs

• Abilities Beyond Limitations and Expectations (ABLE)
• Clarity Singapore  • Mamre Oaks

Families, Youth and Children

• Boys’ Town Singapore  • Canossaville Children’s Home
• Faith and Light Community • Family Life Society
• Montfort Care   • Morning Star Community Services
• Christian Family and Social Movement
• Infant Jesus Homes and Children’s Centres

Palliative Care

• Assisi Hospice

People with Medical Needs

• Mount Alvernia Hospital • Catholic Medical Guild
• Catholic Nurses Guild

Prisoners

• Roman Catholic Prison Ministry

People Living with HIV/AIDS

• Catholic AIDS Response Effort

Migrants

• Archdiocesan Commission for the Pastoral Care of Migrants 
   and Itinerant People (ACMI)

Overseas Missions

• Jesuit Refugee Service (JRS) Singapore • acts29
• Caritas Humanitarian Aid & Relief Initiatives,Singapore (CHARIS)

Other Services

• Catholic Business Network • Catholic Lawyers Guild
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FLS provides family and marital counselling,  
sexuality education & pregnancy crisis service.

Catholic Welfare Services operates the social 
assistance hotline at AV

ABLE provides transport services to  
persons with physical disabilities 

Mount Alvernia operates the Outreach  
Medical Clinic and the Outreach Dental Clinic at AV

ABLE provides rehabilitation therapy,  Catholic Lawyers Guild operates the  
Free Legal Clinic at AV
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Member Organisations 
The following are Catholic organisations under the umbrella of Caritas Singapore which are involved in charity 
and community work. There are 25 such organisations and their details and website links can be found at the 
website of Caritas Singapore.

Abilities Beyond Limitations and Expectations (ABLE) seeks to enable and empower the 
physically challenged to live productive, meaningful and independent lives, and be full contributors to 
the community. ABLE also provides respite care to caregivers to achieve self-care and empowerment. 
ABLE SEAS, a social enterprise was set up to provide accounting services.

acts29 is a youth organisation of the Catholic Church which commits itself to evangelisation through 
mission and dialogue. Among its work, acts29 serves the poor in the “Payatas Dumpsite” of Quezon 
City, Philippines.

Archdiocesan Commission for the Pastoral Care of Migrants and Itinerant People (ACMI)  
provides social and legal assistance, counselling and befriending services to all migrants, foreign 
construction workers, foreign domestic workers, foreign spouses and their families, foreign students 
and transients. ACMI’s Bread Basket programme provides food supplies and toiletries to foreign 
workers, especially construction workers. It runs training courses to teach basic skills to migrants.

Assisi Hospice provides compassionate, personalised and quality integrated palliative care to adults 
and children with life limiting illnesses through its In-patient, Home and Day Care services.

Boys’ Town Singapore is dedicated to providing guidance, shelter, education, vocational training and 
practical living skills to youths who primarily come from large, troubled, single parent and financially 
needy families. Boys’ Town Fostering Agency provides family-based care for vulnerable children and 
complements Boys’ Town’s mission.

Canossaville Children’s Home is run by the Canossian Sisters who care for young children and 
adolescents who are at risk, lack parental care or family support. The home houses up to 30 children. In 
addition, the sisters run a Student Care Centre for children from single-parent poor families and others.

Caritas Humanitarian Aid & Relief Initiatives, Singapore (CHARIS) is the Catholic Church’s 
umbrella body for overseas humanitarian aid. It coordinates the Archdiocesan response to disasters 
and humanitarian needs in fulfilment of the Church’s social mission.

Catholic AIDS Response Effort (CARE) provides shelter for AIDS patients with nowhere to go. The 
team and its volunteers provides befriending, counselling and support through various programmes.

Catholic Business Network (CBN) was set up with the mission to bring together Catholic business 
owners, Catholic professionals and executives for the advancement of Catholic values and ethics in  
their work, and to serve the broader community.

Catholic Lawyers Guild (CLG) provides mutual support and encouragement among lawyers for the 
sanctification of their professional work. CLG runs legal clinics to give legal assistance to the Church 
and persons in need.

Catholic Medical Guild (CMG) sees Catholic doctors coming together to examine social and ethical 
issues in the light of Church teachings and also conduct humanitarian missions overseas together with 
other organisations.

Catholic Nurses Guild (CNG) has nurses who promote professional and spiritual growth of its 
members, who also participate in many Church activities to help the sick, handicapped and elderly.

Catholic Welfare Services (CWS) has been the backbone of the Church’s charity efforts since 1959. 
CWS provides befriending services during night missions to the homeless and offers assistance in 
helping them out of their plight. It conducts a number of projects to help the poor, destitute and those 
in need. It runs six homes for the aged, namely:

• Villa Francis Home • St Theresa’s Home • Gift of Love  Home
• St Joseph’s Home • St Vincent Home • Good Shepherd Centre
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Happiness Within Your Reach

Christian Family and Social Movement (CFSM) is working towards building good Christian 
families, and assisting all family members to live and fulfil their various roles in the family, work place, 
community and nation.

Clarity Singapore Limited (Clarity) aims to provide rehabilitation, support and essential training to 
help people from low to middle income families recover from and manage their psychiatric illnesses 
so that they can find sustainable and meaningful livelihood.

Faith and Light Community (FLC) reaches out to intellectually disabled people and their families 
to help them realise that everyone is a gift from God.

Family Life Society (FLS) aims to be a ministry that empowers families, strengthens marriages and 
upholds the dignity of human life.  Its main programmes/services are:
• Sexuality education programmes for individuals and couples, including teenagers and parents.
• Family and marital counselling – for individuals, couples and family members.
• Pregnancy Crisis Service – for women with unplanned pregnancy.
• Joyful Parenting – provides workshops on do’s and don’ts during pregnancy, pre & post-natal 

wellbeing and runs a support hotline for early parenting and breastfeeding moms.
• Rachel’s Vineyard Singapore –a weekend retreat programme for healing the pain of abortion.

Infant Jesus Homes and Children’s Centres (IJHCC) welcomes children from low-income families 
who need protection, face emotional crisis or are otherwise at risk. Its residents are engaged in 
social, physical and academic activities in an environment where they can be nurtured and cared 
for. It also runs programmes and services that include residential care, out-of-school care, learning 
support, community home and a crisis shelter.

Jesuit Refugee Service (JRS) Singapore is an international Catholic organisation whose mission is 
to accompany, serve and advocate for refugees and forcibly displaced people. JRS Singapore works 
with parishes to raise awareness about the plight of refugees and supports the work of other JRS 
organisations in the Asia Pacific and South Asian regions.

Mamre Oaks (MO) vision and mission are to empower persons with intellectual disabilities (namely 
Special Persons or SPs) to lead lives of meaning, dignity and fulfilment. It aims to provide and create 
an environment where the SPs are welcomed, respected and valued, regardless of their disabilities 
and differences.

Montfort Care (MC) is a network of programmes committed to improving the lives of individuals, 
families and the community facing transitional challenges. Our team of social service professionals 
provide community-based social services to empower lives and strengthen communities.

Services offered by Montfort Care include three Family Service Centres, child protection service by 
its Big Love Child Protection Specialist Centre, cyber wellness programme for youth by its MeToYou 
Cyber Care programme as well as GoodLife! and YAH! programmes to support active and frail seniors 
to age-in-place.

Morning Star Community Services (MSCS) aims to strengthen and enrich family life through 
education programmes and lifeskill workshops both for parents and children. Its after school care 
services are now available during and after office hours. MSCS offers NOVA, a learning support 
programme for discouraged and under-achieving children.

Mount Alvernia Hospital operates the Outreach Medical Clinic and the Outreach Dental Clinic 
at Agape Village. These two clinics provide subsidised primary medical care and dental services 
respectively to the wider community, especially to the poor, the vulnerable and the marginalised.

Roman Catholic Prison Ministry (RCPM) offers befriending and spiritual support services 
for prisoners and their families during incarceration as well as their after-care needs. It provides 
counselling and fellowship services that help promote their human and spiritual development.

Society of St Vincent de Paul (SSVP) one of the best-known Catholic charities, uses monthly 
collections from all churches to provide direct help to the poor and under-privileged of all religions  
for the past 60 years. It provides monetary assistance, food rations and befriending services to  
those in need.
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Board of Directors
Members Date of 

Appointement
Committees Other Information

1 Janet Ang
(Chairman wef 
January 2015) 

January 2013 • Chairman
Board of Caritas 
Singapore

• Member
Board of the Agape 
Fund Trustees

• Chairman
Caritas Singapore 
Executive Committee 

• Chairman
Caritas Singapore 
Nominations

     Committee 

• Vice President, Industry Solutions & 

• Chairman, Institute of Systems Science 
(ISS) - National University of Singapore

• Board Member, National Volunteer and 
Philanthropy Centre (NVPC)

• Board Member, Public Utilities Board 
(PUB)

•  Board Member, Infocomm Development 
Authority of Singapore (iDA)

• Board Member, Cenacle Mission 
(Singapore) Ltd

• Board Member, Singapore Press Holdings 
Ltd (SPH)

2 Anthony Soo
(Deputy Chairman 
wef January 2015)

January 2011 • Caritas Singapore 
Executive Committee 

• Caritas Singapore 
Nominations Committee 

• Co-Chairman 
     Caritas Singapore
     Formation Committee

• Caritas Singapore 
Volunteer Resources 
Committee 

• President, Catholic AIDS Response 
Effort, a member organisation of Caritas 
Singapore

3 Irene Chan January 2013 • Chairman
Caritas Singapore 
Communications 
Committee 

• Caritas Singapore 
Fundraising Committee

• 
of Patient Experience, KK Women’s & 
Children’s Hospital

4 Benedict Cheong January 2013 • Chairman 
Caritas Singapore 
Parish Engagement 
Committee

• CEO, Temasek Foundation

• Board Member, Temasek Cares CLG 
Limited

5 Jane Foo January 2011 • Chairman 
Caritas Singapore 
Volunteer Resources 
Committee

• Caritas Singapore 
Advocacy and Research 
Committee

• Director, Compliance and Ethics, American 
Express International Inc
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Board of Directors
Members Date of 

Appointement
Committees Other Information

6 Jeremy Khoo January 2015 • Chairman 
Caritas Singapore 
Advocacy and Research 
Committee

• Caritas Singapore 
Communications 
Committee

• Communications Manager, World Toilet 
Organization

• Board Member, CHARIS

• Secretary, ACMI

7 Sr Maria Lau, IJS September 2006 • Chairman 
Caritas Singapore 
Formation Committee 

• Provincial, Infant Jesus Sisters, 
Singapore

• Council Member, Inter-Religious 
Organisation

• Member, Archdiocesan Commission for 
Catholic Schoolss

8 Patricia Lim January 2015 • Chairman 
Caritas Singapore Audit 
Committee 

• Caritas Singapore
Membership 
Committee

• Senior Audit Manager, Citibank NA

9 Rev Fr Christopher 
Soh, SJ

August 2014 • Caritas Singapore 
Formation Committee

• Spiritual Director 
Caritas Singapore 
Young Adults 
Committee

• Regional Superior, Region of Malaysia-
Singapore, Society of Jesus

10 Sabina Soh January 2015 • Chairman 
Caritas Singapore 
Membership 
Committee

• Caritas Singapore 
Volunteer Resources 
Committee

• Consultant, Wee Tay & Lim LLP

11 Tan Cheng Han January 2013 • Chairman 
Caritas Singapore 
Fundraising Committee

• Caritas Singapore 
Formation Committee

• Chairman, Public Accountants Oversight 
Committee

• Board member, Accounting and 
Corporate Regulatory Authority

• Chairman, Archdiocesan Commission 
for Catholic Schools

• Professor and Chairman, NUS Centre 
for Law and Business
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Board of Directors

Members Date of 
Appointement

Committees Other Information

12 Friar John-Paul Tan, 
OFM 

January 2011 • Caritas Singapore 
Executive Committee

• Caritas Singapore 
Nominations 
Committee

• Caritas Singapore 
Parish Engagement 
Committee

• Chancellor, Catholic Archdiocese  
of Singapore

• Board Member, Catholic Foundation

13 Teo Jin Lee January 2015 • Chairman
Agape Village Steering 
Committee

(till November 2015)

• Chairman
Agape Village 
Management 
Committee

(wef December 2015)

• Managing Director,  
ODE Consulting

14 Joachim Toh January 2015 • Chairman 
Caritas Singapore 
Finance and Grants 
Committee 

• Agape Village 
Management 
Committee

• 
National University of Singapore

• Board Member, CFA Singapore 

15 Rev Monsignor 
Ambrose Vaz

September 2013 • Caritas Singapore 
Executive Committee

• Caritas Singapore 
Nominations 
Committee

• Vicar General (Pastoral), Catholic 
Archdiocese of Singapore

• Rector, St Francis Xavier Major 
Seminary
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Trustees of The Agape Fund

Top (left to right) : Frank Wong, Janet Ang, Rev Deacon Clement Chen, Willie Cheng, Dr Lim Cheok Peng
Bottom (left to right) : Jane Foo, Laurence Lien, George Lim, Ng Kok Song, Christina Ong

PEOPLE AT CARITAS SINGAPORE

Members Date of 
Appointement

Other Information

1 Frank Wong
(Chairman wef 
January 2013 

September 2007 • Vice Chairman, Asia Philanthropic Ventures Pte Ltd

2 Janet Ang March 2015 • Chairman, Caritas Singapore

3 Rev Deacon Clement 
Chen

November 2015 • Permanent Deacon, Catholic Archdiocese of Singapore

• Archdiocesan Financial Administrator, Catholic Archdiocese of 
Singapore

• Board of Consultors, Catholic Archdiocese of Singapore

• Permanent Advisor, Senate of Priests, Catholic Archdiocese of 
Singapore

• Board Member, Archdiocesan Land & Properties Singapore

4 Willie Cheng November 2006 • Chairman, Singapore Institute of Directors

• Board Member, CHARIS

• Deputy Chairman, Catholic Foundation

5 Dr Lim Cheok Peng August 2007 • Chairman, Ophir-Ventures

• Member, Panel of Disciplinary Tribunal Chairmen,  
Singapore Medical Council 

• Member, NUS President’s Advancement Advisory Council

• Board Member, Catholic Foundation

6 Jane Foo November 2015 • Director, Compliance and Ethics, American Express International Inc

7 Laurence Lien November 2015 • Chairman, Lien Foundation

• Chairman, Community Foundation of Singapore

• Co-founder and CEO, Asia Philanthropy Circle

• Board Member, Lien Centre for Social Innovation
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chair : Benedict Cheong (wef 1-3-2016)

  Patricia Lim (resigned 30-6-2016)

Members : Yvonne Chu

  Elizabeth Sulistio 

  Christopher Woo (resigned 21-3-2016)
  Francis Wan (wef 2-8-2016)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Chair : Janet Ang 

Members : Rev Monsignor Ambrose Vaz 

  Friar John-Paul Tan, OFM
  Anthony Soo

FINANCE AND GRANTS COMMITTEE

Chair : Joachim Toh 

Members : Thomas Goh

  Edwin Lee

  Juliana Ng

  Thomas Teo 

  Belinda Young 

  Paul Teo (wef 3-8-2016)

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Chair : Janet Ang 

Members : Rev Monsignor Ambrose Vaz 

  Friar John-Paul Tan, OFM
  Anthony Soo

BOARD INFRASTRUCTURAL COMMITTEES

PEOPLE AT CARITAS SINGAPORE

Trustees of The Agape Fund

Committees

Members Date of 
Appointement

Other Information

8 George Lim November 2006 • Senior Counsel and Mediator, Consultant, Wee, Tay & Lim 

• Past President, Law Society of Singapore

• Past Chairman, Caritas Singapore

• Consultor, Jesuit Refugee Service Singapore 

9 Ng Kok Song August 2013 • Chairman, Avanda Investment Management Pte Ltd

• Board Member, Singapore Exchange

10 Christina Ong November 2015 • Director, Club 21 Pte Ltd

• Chairman, National Parks Board

• Director, Como Foundation

• Director, Singapore Airlines Limited

• Director, Shambhala Yoga Centre Pte Ltd
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PEOPLE AT CARITAS SINGAPORE

AGAPE VILLAGE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Chair : Teo Jin Lee

Members : Ong Hoon Meng

  Theodore Chan 

  Joachim Toh

  Alan Lim 

  George Lim

  Irene Loi 

  Mark Wettasinghe

  Gordon Pinto (General Manager)

ADVOCACY AND RESEARCH COMMITTEE 

Chair : Jeremy Khoo 

Members : Rev Fr Patrick Goh (resigned 30-6-2016)

  Jane Foo

  Karen Goh

  David Fong (resigned 31-8-2016)

  Roland Yeow 

  Fred Cordeiro (wef May 2016)

  Esther Chia (wef May 2016)

COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE

Chair : Irene Chan

Members : Jeremy Khoo

  Venessa Lee

  Geraldine Soh

  Jeanette Tan 

FORMATION COMMITTEE

Chair : Sr Maria Lau, IJS

Vice Chair : Anthony Soo

Members : Rev Fr Christopher Soh, SJ

  Rev Fr David Garcia, OP

  Fang Swee Im

  Goh Han Serm

  Stephenie Ng

  Tan Cheng Han 

FUNDRAISING COMMITTEE  

Chair : Tan Cheng Han  

Members : Michael Seow

  Kris Sidharta

  Lynda Soong

  Adrian Tan

  Theresa Foo

  Perlita Tiro

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE 

Chair : Sabina Soh 

Members : Cheong Cheng Guan

  Patrick Chua

  Goh Teik Poh

  Sherlyn Khong

  Leong Seey Seey

  Jennifer Lim

  Patricia Lim  
  (resigned 30-6-2016)

  Francis Mane

  Damien Ooi

PARISH ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Chair : Benedict Cheong 

Co-Chair : Friar John-Paul Tan, OFM

VOLUNTEER RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

Chair : Jane Foo 

Members : Michelle Lee

  Sabina Soh

  Anthony Soo 

  Michael Charles Loh
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BOARD PROGRAMME COMMITTEES

YOUNG ADULTS COMMITTEE  

Chair : Alan Lim 

Vice Chair  : Michelle Lee

Spiritual 
Director  : Rev Fr Christopher Soh, SJ

Members : Park Hyun

  Hannah Lee

  Philene Leow

  Bernadette Sandra

  Mark Tang

  Francis Tay

  Priscillia Teo

PROJECT COMMITTEES

SOCIAL MISSION CONFERENCE 2016  
PROJECT COMMITTEE  

Co-Chair : Jane Foo

Co-Chair : Jeremy Khoo 

Co-Chair  : Helen Choo

Members : Goh Han Serm

  Martha Suen 

  David Lau

  Rose Hong 

  Nicholas Loo

  Adeline Heng 

  Alvin Neo

  Pamela Arcae Panganiban

  Bernadette Lau  

  (Executive Director)

YOUNG ADULTS MISSION OF MERCY EVENT 2016 
PROJECT COMMITTEE  

Chair : Francis Tay

Members : Michelle Lee

  Koh Hsing Dee

  Theresa Seam

  Hannah Lee

  Charmaine Liu

  Mark Tang

  Pius Lee

CARITAS SINGAPORE GOLF FOR CHARITY 2016 
ORGANISING COMMITTEE  

Chair : Peter Goh   

Members : Willie Cheng

  Stephen Chu

  Agnes Goh

  Bobby Lean

  Gene Lee

  Vincent Kong

  Michael Tan

  Charles Leong

  Eric Teoh (Tournament Director)

  Sue Anne Kuek

CARITAS SINGAPORE DOWN MEMORY LANE 6 
CHARITY DINNER SHOW  

ORGANISING COMMITTEE

Chair : Samantha Fok   

Members : Colin Goh

  Sue Anne Kuek

  Lim Sek

  Shirley Yap

  Janice Zhang

IT COMMITTEE  

Chair : Ong Hoon Meng 

Members : Samantha Fok 

  Philip Yeap 

  Steven Tan 



Caritas Singapore Annual Report 2016 61

From left to right:

Kathleen Sim (Admin, Agape Village)

Genevieve Koh (Operations & Programmes Manager, Agape Village)

Eve Ong (Parish Engagement Coordinator, Agape Village)

Gordon Pinto (General Manager, Agape Village)

Winnifred Sim (Admin, Agape Village)

Sarathi Govindasamy (Facility Manager, Agape Village)

Tang Lay Lee (Advocacy & Research)

Nervin Pillai (Operations & Programmes Executive, Agape Village)

Raymond Yong (Membership)

Bernadette Lau (Executive Director)

Prem Augustine (Formation)

Medona Walter (Communications)

Veronica Njo (Finance)

Su-Lene Lim (Admin Supervisor, Agape Village)

Pamela Lim (Fundraising and Community Partnerships)

Ruby Gomez (IT Manager)

Mohd Zalizan Bin Mohd Razali (Technician, Agape Village)

Frances Ng (Volunteer Coordinator)

Gail Ng (Special Projects)

Stacie Tan (Marcoms, Agape Village)

PEOPLE AT CARITAS SINGAPORE

Executive Team
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Caritas Singapore Community Council Limited 
(“Caritas Singapore” or “the Council”) is committed to 
maintaining high standards of corporate governance.

In Singapore, best practices in governance are set 
out in the Code of Governance for Charities and 
Institutions of a Public Character (IPC) (“the Charity 

Charity Council in November 2007. The Code was 

a revised Code on 19 January 2011 to help charities 
apply the Code more effectively.

The Code is not mandatory but charities and IPCs 
are encouraged to follow the code and explain any 
deviations from it. The Charity Council also launched 
an online Governance Evaluation Checklist designed 
to help charities and IPCs self-evaluate the extent 

Caritas Singapore Code of Governance Evaluation Checklist 

they have complied with essential guidelines in the 
Charity Council Code.

Caritas Singapore has also developed our own code 
of governance (“the Caritas Singapore Code”) which 
builds upon the Charity Council Code, setting out our 
implementation of the principles where appropriate 
and adding in the Catholic ethos. This is being 

Charity Council Code.

For the purpose of this report, Caritas Singapore’s 
compliance of and explanations for any deviations 
from the Charity Council Code are provided below. 
In addition, the Governance Evaluation Checklists 
of Caritas Singapore and CSCC Agape Fund can be 
viewed on the Charity portal at www.charities.gov.sg. 

Corporate Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

S/N Description Code ID Response Explanation (if compliance is in progress,
not complied or not applicable)

Board Governance

1 Are there board members holding 
staff appointments

No

2 There is a maximum term limit of four 
consecutive years for the Treasurer 
position (or equivalent, eg Finance 
Committee Chairman). 

1.1.6 Complied The Caritas Singapore Board has established a set of 
guidelines on board renewal to ensure continuity and 
appropriate mix of experience and skills. The tenure 
for the following positions is limited to a maximum 
of two consecutive terms (ie four years): Board 
Chairman, Audit Committee Chairman, and Finance 
Committee Chairman. 

3 The Board conducts regular self-
evaluation to assess its performance 
and effectiveness. 

1.1.10 Complied The Caritas Singapore Board did a written
self-evaluation survey and the comments were
collated and circulated to the Board for information.

4 There are Board committees (or 
designated Board members) with 
documented terms of reference. 

1.2.1 Complied Each Board Committee is chaired by a Caritas 
Singapore Board member, and terms of reference are 
documented.  

5 The Board meets regularly with a 
quorum of at least one-third or at 
least three members, whichever 
is greater (or as required by the 
governing instrument). 

1.3.1 Complied The Caritas Singapore Board meets once in every 
two months. The quorum for meeting is one-third of 
members.

The Board of Agape Trustees meets at least once in 
a year. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

S/N Description Code ID Response Explanation (if compliance is in progress,
not complied or not applicable)

Conflict of interest

6 There are documented procedures for 
Board members and staff to declare 

to the Board. 

2.1 Complied
Board members are documented in the Caritas 
Singapore Code of Governance; and in the Finance 
and Accounting Policy Manual. All Board members 
also provide a disclosure of their interests in all other 
organisations, including member organisations in 
which they are directors or have control on the board.

interests for paid staff. 

7 Board members do not vote or 
participate in decision-making on 

interest. 

2.4 Complied
of interest and this is documented in
the minutes of meeting. 

Strategic Planning

8 The Board reviews and approves 
the vision and mission of the 
charity. They are documented and 
communicated to its members and 
the public.

3.1.1 Complied The Board reviews the relevance of Caritas 
Singapore’s vision and mission at its planning 
retreat held once in a year.

9 The Board approves and reviews 
a strategic plan for the charity to 
ensure that the activities are in line 
with its objectives. 

3.2.2 Complied The Board holds an annual retreat to develop a 
structured and integrated work plan for the year 
in line with its mission and strategies. The Board 
retreat was held in January this year. 

Human Resource Management

10 The Board approves documented 
human resource policies for staff. 

5.1 Complied Human resource policies are documented in the 
Staff Handbook which is approved by the Executive 
Committee of the Board. 

11 There are systems for regular 
supervision, appraisal and 
professional development of staff. 

5.6 Complied Caritas Singapore has established systems for 
annual appraisal, development and training needs 
of staff. 

12 There is a system to address 5.11 Complied Grievance procedures for staff and volunteers are 
set out in the Staff Handbook.

Financial Management and Controls

13 The Board ensures internal control 

place with documented procedures. 

6.1.2 Complied Finance policies and procedures are documented in 
the Financial and Accounting Policy Manual. 

14 The Board ensures reviews on the 
charity’s controls, processes, key 
programmes and events. 

6.1.3 Complied Internal audits are conducted to review the 
processes and adequacy of internal controls.
The Board is updated on the progress of 
programmes and events. 

15 The Board approves an annual 
budget for the charity’s plans and 
regularly monitors its expenditure. 

6.2.1 Complied An annual operating budget is prepared in 
consultation with the Board Committees based on 
programmes agreed to at the Board annual retreat. 
This is approved by the Caritas Singapore Board and 
the Board of Agape Trustees. Financial
reports are also tabled at the Board meetings. 

16 The charity discloses its reserves 
policy in the annual report.

6.4.1 Complied Caritas Singapore has established a reserves policy 
and this is disclosed in the notes to its audited 

17 Does the charity invest its reserves. Yes
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Footnote (1):

Reserves Policy

The Board has established a reserves policy which states:

and be in line with regulatory requirements and industry best practices. At the same time, as a Church organisation, we do not seek to hold excessive funds to provide 
for unknown and far future needs.

majority of our annual expenditure and is expected to increase proportionately over the years.

Our grant making role is critical to the functioning and continuation of several Catholic charities which depend on the Council for the majority if not all of their 

 
Caritas Singapore will target a general reserve level of two years taking into account that the grant making function represents the majority of our expenditure, and 

Capacity Building Fund that is focused on funding our operating needs to make our annual fundraising for our member organisations more effective.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

S/N Description Code ID Response Explanation (if compliance is in progress,
not complied or not applicable)

18 The charity invests its reserves in 
accordance with an investment policy 
approved by the Board. It obtains 

advisors, if deemed necessary by the 
Board. 

6.4.4 Complied The Board approves the investment mandate of 
Caritas Singapore. 

The Finance and Grants Committee recommends 
and oversees its cash management and 
investments.  

Fundraising Practices

19 Donations collected are properly 
recorded and promptly deposited by 
the charity.

7.2.2 Complied Fundraising processes and controls are set out in 
the Finance and Accounting Policy Manual.
The Fundraising Committee reviews and approves 
the fundraising processes, internal controls and 
messages to ensure integrity and transparency of 
the process. 

Disclosure and Transparency

20 The charity makes available to its
stakeholders an annual report that 
includes information on its
programmes, activities, 

Board members and executive 
management.

8.1 Complied Copies of Caritas Singapore Annual and Financial 
Reports are sent to stakeholders including its 
member organisations, key donors, parishes and 
strategic partners. This is also published on Caritas 
Singapore’s website.

21 Are Board members remunerated for 
their Board services. 

No  

22 Does the charity employ paid staff. Yes

23 No staff is involved in setting his or 
her own remuneration.

2.2 Complied The Executive Committee oversees the 
remuneration of staff.

24 The charity discloses in its annual 
report the annual remuneration of its 
three highest paid staff who
each receives remuneration 
exceeding $100,000, in bands of 
$100,000. If none of its top three 
highest paid staff receives more than 
$100,000 in annual remuneration 
each, the charity discloses this fact.

8.3 Complied The total annual remuneration of its three highest 
paid staff in salary bands of less than $100,000, is 
disclosed in its annual report.

Public image

25 The charity accurately portrays its 
image to its members, donors and 
the public.

9.1 Complied Information regarding Caritas Singapore’s scope, 
structure and programmes are provided on its 
website and its publications such as the Annual 
Reports given to interested parties. The Annual 
Report is available on its website.
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Directors’ statement
The directors are pleased to present their statement to the members together with the audited financial 
statements of Caritas Singapore Community Council Limited (the “Council”) for the financial year ended 30 
September 2016.

Opinion of the directors

In the opinion of the directors,

(i) the accompanying statements of financial activities, statement of financial position, statement of 
changes in funds and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn up so as to give 
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 30 September 2016, and the financial 
performance, changes in funds and cash flows of the Council for the financial year ended on that date, 
and

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Council will be able to 
pay its debts as and when they fall due.

Directors

The directors of the Council in office at the date of this statement are:

Janet Ang Guat Har (Chairman)
Anthony Soo Wai Seng (Deputy Chairman)
Benedict Cheong
Christopher Soh Yeow Fook
Friar John-Paul Tan, OFM 
Irene Chan
Jane Foo
Jeremy Khoo
Joachim Toh
Patricia Lim
Rev. Monsignor Ambrose Vaz
Sabrina Soh
Sr Maria Lau, IJS
Tan Cheng Han
Teo Jin Lee

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

The Council is a company limited by guarantee and has no share capital. None of the Directors holding office at 
the end of the financial year had an interest in the share capital of the Council that is required to be reported 
pursuant to Section 201(6)(f) of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50.

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

The Council is a company limited by guarantee.

There were no shares or debentures in issue in the Council at the end of the financial year.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Options

The Council is a company limited by guarantee. As such, there are no share options or unissued shares 
under option.

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept reappointment as auditors.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Janet Ang
Director

Anthony Soo
Director

Singapore
22 December 2016

Directors’ statement
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Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Caritas Singapore Community Council Limited 
(the “Council”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2016, the statement 
of financial activities, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the reporting year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”), the Singapore Charities 
Act, Chapter 37 (the “Charities Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and 
maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets 
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised 
and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to 
maintain accountability of assets. 

Auditor’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Independent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Caritas Singapore Community Council Limited

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act, the Charities Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Council as at 30 September 2016 and the results, changes in funds and cash flows 
of the Council for the reporting year ended on that date.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Council have been 
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

During the course of our audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that during the 
reporting year:

(a) The use of the donation money was not in accordance with the objectives of the Council as required 
under regulation 11 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character Regulations); and

(b) The Council has not complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 (Fund-raising expenses) of the 
Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations.

Ernst & Young LLP

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

22 December 2016

Independent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Caritas Singapore Community Council Limited
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Statement of financial activities

Note

General  
Fund 
2016

Agape  
Fund  
2016

Agape  
Village  

Building  
Fund 2016

Total 
2016

$ $ $ $

Incoming resources 

Incoming resources from  
generated funds

Voluntary income 4a    1,073,016 8,031,730 2,000,000 11,104,746

Activities for generating funds 4b 9,800 164,000 – 173,800

Interest income – 174,025 – 174,025

Incoming resources from  
charitable activities

Other incoming resources 5 103,759 296,438 – 400,197

Total incoming resources 1,186,575 8,666,193 2,000,000 11,852,768

Resources expended

Costs of generating funds

Costs of generating voluntary income 6a 39,836 169,828 – 209,664

Costs of activities for generating funds 6b 9,897 42,193 – 52,090

Total costs of generating funds 49,733 212,021 – 261,754

Net incoming resources available for 
charitable application 1,136,842 8,454,172 2,000,000 11,591,014

Cost of charitable activities 7 1,415,955 5,769,638 – 7,185,593

Governance costs 9 – 181,682 – 181,682

1,415,955 5,951,320 – 7,367,275

Total resources expended 1,465,688 6,163,341 – 7,629,029

Net incoming resources, representing 
total comprehensive income 11 (279,113) 2,502,852 2,000,000 4,223,739

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Statement of financial activities

Note

General 
Fund
2015

Agape 
Fund
2015

Agape  
Village  

Building  
Fund 2015

Total
2015

$ $ $ $

Incoming resources 

Incoming resources from  
generated funds

Voluntary income 4a    1,825,336 6,257,160 3,250,450 11,332,946

Activities for generating funds 4b 7,105 232,340 – 239,445

Interest income – 134,727 – 134,727

Incoming resources from  
charitable activities

Other incoming resources 5 22,581 – – 22,581

Total incoming resources 1,855,022 6,624,227 3,250,450 11,729,699

Resources expended

Costs of generating funds

Costs of generating voluntary income 6a 30,180 127,173 67,837 225,190

Costs of activities for generating funds 6b 1,557 44,215 – 45,772

Total costs of generating funds 31,737 171,388 67,837 270,962

Net incoming resources available for 
charitable application 1,823,285 6,452,839 3,182,613 11,458,737

Cost of charitable activities 7 973,348 4,368,797 504,306 5,846,451

Governance costs 9 – 190,324 – 190,324

973,348 4,559,121 504,306 6,036,775

Total resources expended 1,005,085 4,730,509 572,143 6,307,737

Net incoming resources, representing 
total comprehensive income 11 849,937 1,893,718 2,678,307 5,421,962

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 2016 2015

$ $

Non-current asset

Property, plant and equipment 12 964,899 1,060,100

Prepayments 13 3,141,850 3,321,728

Agape Village Building Cost 12 14,240,296 13,961,620

18,347,045 18,343,448

Current assets

Prepayments 13 328,167 188,422

Other debtors and deposits 14 746,370 123,474

Cash and cash at bank 15 18,920,414 15,017,118

19,994,951 15,329,014

Non-current liabilities

Hire purchase creditor 17 – 658

Provision for reinstatement cost 12 313,000 313,000

313,000 313,658

Current liabilities

Creditors and accruals 16 2,457,159 1,466,674

2,457,159 1,466,674

Net current assets 17,537,792 13,862,340

Net assets 35,571,837 31,892,130

Funds

General Fund
Restricted fund 19 345,836 345,836

Unrestricted fund 20 1,674,402 1,953,515

Agape village building – unrestricted designated fund 20 – 884,697

2,020,238 3,184,048

Agape Fund
Restricted fund/expendable endowment fund 19 378,340 398,340

Unrestricted fund 20 17,545,765 15,022,913

Agape village building – unrestricted designated fund 20 15,627,494 13,286,829

33,551,599 28,708,082

Total funds 35,571,837 31,892,130

Statement of financial position 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



74 Caritas Singapore Annual Report 2016

General Fund Agape Fund

Agape 
Village 

Building 
Fund Total Fund

$ $ $ $

At 30 September 2014 1,449,414 13,527,535 11,622,597 26,599,546

Net incoming resources 849,937 1,893,718 2,678,307 5,421,962

Amortization expenses net of  
depreciation of property, plant  
and equipment credited to  
charitable activities – – (129,378) (129,378)

At 30 September 2015 2,299,351 15,421,253 14,171,526 31,892,130

Net incoming resources (279,113) 2,502,852 2,000,000 4,223,739

Amortization expenses net of depreciation 
of property, plant and equipment credited to 
charitable activities – – (544,032) (544,032)

At 30 September 2016 2,020,238 17,924,105 15,627,494 35,571,837

Statement of changes in funds 
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2016 2015

$ $

Net incoming resources for the year 4,223,739 5,421,962

Adjustments:

  Interest income (174,025) (134,727)

  Interest expense on hire purchase equipment 513 513

  Depreciation charge for the year 865,072 183,546

  Amortisation of building fund (544,032) (129,378)

  Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,494 –

4,373,761 5,341,916

Decrease in prepayments 40,113 214,198

Increase in other debtors and deposits (576,381) (2,436)

Increase in creditors and accruals 990,485 602,914

Increase in provision for reinstatement cost – 313,000

4,827,978 6,469,592

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (218,393) (825,945)

Additions to agape village building cost (832,648) (9,508,889)

Interest received 127,260 125,486

(923,781) (10,209,348)

Repayment of obligations under hire purchase (658) (2,631)

Interest expense on hire purchase equipment (243) (513)

(901) (3,144)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,903,296 (3,742,900)

15,017,118 18,760,018

18,920,414 15,017,118

Statement of cash flows 
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1. General information
 Caritas Singapore Community Council Limited (the “Council”) is a company limited by guarantee and 

registered charity under the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50. The Council was initially registered as 
the Catholic Social and Community Council Limited under the Charities Act, Chapter 37, in Singapore 
(Registration No: 02022). On 26 August 2008, it formally changed its name to Caritas Singapore 
Community Council Limited. The registered office is at 55 Waterloo Street, #08-01, Catholic Welfare 
Centre, Singapore 187954.

 The Council has established the CSCC Agape Fund (Agape Fund), a trust fund governed by a board of 
five trustees. The fund was also registered under the Charities Act, Chapter 37, in Singapore (Unique 
Entity No: T06CC2001K). The objectives of the fund are in line with that of the Council.

 The principal activities of the Council are to provide the overall leadership to the various charitable 
organisations under the Archdiocese which assist in the relief of poverty and provide support to needy 
beneficiaries regardless of age, sex, nationality, religion or moral character. The Council is the official 
social and community arm of the Archdiocese to fulfil the Church’s social mission for the benefit of the 
broader community.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

 The financial statements of the Council have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial 
Reporting Standards (“FRSs”). They are also subjected to the provisions of the Charities Act, Cap. 37 
and of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50. 

 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the 
accounting policies below. 

 The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars (SGD or $).

2.1 Changes in accounting policies

 The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except in the 
current financial year, the Council has adopted all the new and revised standards which are effective 
for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 October 2015. The adoption of these standards did 
not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Council.

Notes to the financial statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective

The Council has not adopted the following standards that have been issued but not yet effective:

Description

Effective for annual  
periods beginning  
on or after

FRS 114 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 16 and FRS 41 Agriculture - Bearer Plants 1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
 Statements 1 January 2016

 Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation 1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 7: Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017

Amendments to FRS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
 Unrealised Losses 1 January 2017

Improvements to FRSs (November 2014)

(a) Amendments to FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
 and Discontinued Operations 1 January 2016

(b) Amendments to FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1 January 2016

(c) Amendments to FRS 19 1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 111 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations 1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 110 & FRS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Date to be  
determined

Amendments to FRS 1 Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 110, FRS 112 and FRS 28 Investment 
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception 1 January 2016

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018

FRS 109 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

Amendments to FRS 115: 
Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018

FRS 116 Leases 1 January 2019

 The directors expect that the adoption of the other standards above will have no material impact on 
the financial statements in the period of initial application.

Notes to the financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.4 Significant accounting judgments and estimates

 The preparation of the Council’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

 There are no significant accounting estimates and judgements at the balance sheet date, that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year.

2.5 Functional currency

 The Council has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Council 
operates i.e. functional currency, to be SGD. Incoming resources and resources expended are primarily 
influenced by fluctuations in SGD.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

 All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.  

 When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, 
the Council recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, 
respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other 
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

 Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as 
follows:

Years

Computer equipment and software – 1

Donated assets – 1

– 5

Leasehold improvements – 10 - 28

Agape Village Building – 26

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

 Agape Village Building was completed end June 2015 and obtained Temporary Occupation Permit on 
24 July 2015 and is depreciated over the life of lease of the land.

 Agape Building Asset under construction are not depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use.

 The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

 The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the asset is 
included in the statement of financial activities/comprehensive income in the year the asset is 
derecognised.

 There are no items of property, plant and equipment acquired in full or in part from the proceeds of a grant.

 Where functional items of property, plant and equipment have been donated, they are included in the 
balance sheet at their fair value at the date of the gift and also included in the statement of financial 
activities/comprehensive income as an incoming resource. Accounting policies for the valuation of 
gifts are disclosed in Note 2.16 (c).

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

 The Council assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the 
Council makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

 An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 
Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent 
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an 
appropriate valuation model is used. 

 Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in profit or loss, except for assets that are 
previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, 
the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous 
revaluation.

Notes to the financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets (cont’d)

 For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any 
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 
If such indication exists, the Council estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable 
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in 
the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 
was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 
amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in the 
statement of financial activities/comprehensive income unless the asset is measured at revalued 
amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.8  Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Council becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument. The Council determines the classification of its financial assets 
at initial recognition.

 When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of 
financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

 Subsequent measurement

 The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

 (a) Loans and receivables

  Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted  
 in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition,  
 loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,  
 less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and  
 receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

 (b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets designated upon  
 initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition,  
 financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Any gains or  
 losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in statement  
 of financial activities/comprehensive income. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)

 De-recognition

 A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the 
asset has expired. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between 
the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss 
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in statement of financial 
activities/comprehensive income. 

2.9 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, and short-term, highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. The accounting policy for the category of financial assets 
is stated in Note 2.8.

2.10 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Council determines the classification of 
its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

 All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus in the case of financial liabilities 
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 

 Subsequent measurement

 After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of financial 
activities/comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation 
process.

 Derecognition

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different term, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability, 
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in statement of financial 
activities/comprehensive income. 

Notes to the financial statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.11 Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated 
reliably. 

 Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required 
to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is 
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, 
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to 
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.12 Government grants

 Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Government grants shall be recognised 
in the statement of financial activities/ comprehensive income on a systematic basis over the 
periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are 
intended to compensate.

2.13 Deferred income

 Income received is recognised at fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the income 
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Income received in advance or 
subject to donor-imposed conditions that specify a future time period in which the expenditure of 
corresponding resources can take place is recorded as deferred income.

2.14 Employee benefits

 (a) Defined contribution plans

   The Council participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the  
  countries in which it has operations.  In particular, the Council makes contributions  
  to the Central Provident Fund scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension  
  scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an  
  expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

 (b) Employee leave entitlement

   Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.  
  The estimated liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by employees up to  
  the end of the reporting period.

Notes to the financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.15 Leases

 The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance 
of the arrangement at inception date: whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the 
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if 
that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

 For arrangements entered into prior to 1 June 2005, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 June 
2005 in accordance with the transitional requirements of INT FRS 104.

 (a) Finance lease

 Finance leases which transfer to the Council substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease 
at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum 
lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to the amount capitalised. Lease 
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability 
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are charged to the statement of financial activities/ comprehensive 
income. Contingent rents, if any, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are 
incurred. 

 Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life 
of the asset and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Council will 
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

 (b) Operating lease

 Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
activities/comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The 
aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of 
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

2.16 Incoming resources from generated funds

 All incoming resources are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits 
will flow to the Council and the amount can be reliably measured. No amounts are included for 
services donated by volunteers. Incoming resources from generated funds comprise:
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Notes to the financial statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.16 Incoming resources from generated funds (cont’d)

 Voluntary income

(a) Donations

 Such income is recognised when received. Income received is recognised at fair value 
where there is reasonable assurance that the income will be received and all attaching 
conditions will be complied with. All income is demarcated between the Council’s General 
Fund and the Agape Fund. The Agape Fund is registered as an IPC and thus donations 
requiring tax exemption are credited into the Agape Fund. Non tax-exempt donations are 
credited to the General Fund.

(b) Membership subscriptions

 Such income is recognised on an accrual basis over the life of the subscriptions.

(c) Gifts-in-kind

 Gifts-in-kind are recognised based on an estimate of the fair value at the date of the 
receipt of the donation of the non-monetary asset or the grant of a right to a monetary 
asset. The donation is recognised if the amount of the gift can be measured reliably and 
there is no uncertainty that it will be received.

 Activities for generating funds

 Proceeds from such activities are recognised in the period in which the event takes place. Any 
sales of merchandise are accounted for when the transaction occurs.

 Interest income

 Interest income is accounted for on accrual basis using the effective interest method.

2.17 Incoming resources from charitable activities

 This income arises from activities such as talks, seminars and conferences undertaken by the 
Council in furtherance of its charitable objectives. Proceeds from such activities are recognised 
in the period in which the event takes place.

2.18 Resources expended

 Expenditure is accounted for on accrual basis. Allocations of support costs are based on payroll 
costs of time spent by staff, or direct expenditure and activity levels, as appropriate. Resources 
expended comprise:

 Costs of generating voluntary income

 The costs of generating voluntary income are those costs attributable to generating income for 
the Council, including salaries and directly attributable overheads such as the costs of producing 
advertising and direct mail materials.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.19 Resources expended (cont’d)

 Costs of activities for generating funds

 These costs include the direct cost of hosting such activities and all directly attributable 
overheads. No value is ascribed to goods donated for re-sale or for auction.

 Costs of charitable activities

 The charitable activities of the Council flow from its vision and purpose. The primary charitable 
activities are grants given to member organisations to part finance their operational expenditure 
and programmes and also to parishes to fund charitable projects which are directed to the poor 
and those in need in the community.

 The Council’s charitable activities of awarding grants are distributed through a formal grant 
making process by the Finance and Grants Committee, which reviews and recommends such 
grants for the approval by the Board of the Council and thereafter the Board of Trustees for any 
application of funds from the Agape Fund. 

 The Council’s Finance and Grants Committee also reviews and evaluates all funding requests from 
parishes and their proposed charitable works. The Board of the Council reviews and approves the 
Committee’s recommendations of the grants before they are disbursed in full to the parishes. 

 Grants to member organisations which have IPC status are applied from the Agape Fund. All other 
grants are applied from the General Fund. The grants are disbursed in tranches, at the discretion 
of the Council, to take into account the cash flow requirements of the member organisations.  

 Grant expenditure is charged to the statement of financial activities/comprehensive income 
immediately from the point of the award being made, as evidenced by the grant agreement 
entered into between the Council and the grantee. 

 Support costs

 Support Costs are those costs incurred in support of fundraising activities and the awarding and 
payment of grants. These are an integral cost of carrying out the direct charitable objectives of the 
organisation. The details of support costs in the statement of financial activities/comprehensive 
income are disclosed in Note 9.

 Governance costs

 Governance costs are those incurred in compliance with constitutional and statutory 
requirements including related professional fees.

Notes to the financial statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.20 Funds accounting

 The funds held by the Council are:

•  General Funds are funds that can be used in accordance with the charitable objectives 
of the Council. Such funds are either unrestricted or restricted. The restrictions arise 
when specified by the donor or when funds are raised for a particular restricted purpose. 
Currently, there are two restricted funds, the Capacity Building Fund and the St. Jude 
Fund. The Capacity Building Fund is an expendable endowment fund established so that 
in the long term, the interest income generated from this fund would support the on-going 
operating needs of the Council. Non tax-exempt donations for the Capacity Building Fund 
are credited into the General Fund, and usage of the fund requires the approval of the 
Board of the Council.

•  The Agape Fund is made up of tax-exempt donations that can be used in accordance 
with the charitable objectives of the Council. The Agape Fund also has both unrestricted 
and restricted funds, the latter which includes the Capacity Building Fund and the St. 
Jude Fund. Tax-exempt donations for the Capacity Building Fund are credited into the 
Agape Fund and usage of the fund requires the approval of the Board of the Council and 
the Board of Trustees. The St. Jude Fund was created in November 2010 for restricted 
donations made by donors crossing more than one fiscal year. Tax-exempt donations 
for the St. Jude Fund are also credited into the Agape Fund and usage of the fund is 
according to the intent of the donor. The first major donor of the St. Jude Fund, who 
wishes to remain anonymous, contributed a sum of S$500,000 for grants to be made to 
various member organisations over a period of ten years starting in FY2011. 

•  The Agape Village Building Fund is an unrestricted designated sub-fund set up under 
both the Agape Fund for donations with tax-exempt receipts and the General Fund for 
donations without tax-exempt receipts. The usage of the tax-exempt donations under the 
Agape Fund requires the approval of the Board of the Council and the Board of Trustees. 
The Agape Village Building Fund has been designated primarily to fund the construction 
and operations of Agape Village at Lorong 8 Toa Payoh on a 3,000 square metre piece of 
land owned by the Titular Roman Catholic Archdiocese of Singapore.

 The Council intends to create a new one-stop Catholic Services hub where people in need 
can connect to the 23 charities and services under its umbrella to help those in need, 
regardless of race, language or religion. It will also bring together the common services of 
our Catholic charities under one roof – integrated case management, counselling, legal 
aid, medical aid, care-giver support, skills training and job matching for displaced workers 
and professionals, mentoring and life skills, coaching for the poor and marginalised in our 
society.

 The Agape Village Building Fund will be reduced over the useful life of the asset in line 
with its depreciation.

Notes to the financial statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.21 Related parties

 A related party includes the trustees/office bearers (that is, directors) and key management of 
the Council. It also includes an entity or person that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled 
by, or is under common or joint control with these persons. It also includes members of the key 
management personnel of close members of the family of any individual referred to herein and 
others who have the ability to control, jointly control or significantly influence by or for which 
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any such individual. 

2.22 Current tax

 Under Section 13U(1) of the Income Tax Act, all registered charities will enjoy automatic income 
tax exemption without having the need to meet the 80% spending rule. In other words, they do 
not need to file income tax returns.

3. Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

 The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of the revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of 
reporting period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected 
in the future periods. Management is of the opinion that there is no significant judgement made 
in applying accounting policies and no estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial period.

Notes to the financial statements
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5. Incoming resources from charitable activities
General Fund 

Unrestricted
Agape Fund 
Unrestricted

Total 
Unrestricted

$ $ $
Year ended 30.9.2016
Personal Moral Compass 18,310 – 18,310
Others 85,449 296,438 381,887

103,759 296,438 400,197

Year ended 30.9.2015
Personal Moral Compass 16,950 – 16,950
Others 5,631 – 5,631

22,581 – 22,581

6. Costs of generating funds

 (a)   Costs of generating voluntary income

General Fund Agape Fund
Agape Village 
Building Fund Total

Unrestricted Unrestricted
Unrestricted 

but Designated

$ $ $ $

Year ended 30.9.2016

Direct costs 19,423 82,804 – 102,227

Staff costs 2,054 8,758 – 10,812

Support costs (Note 10) 18,359 78,266 – 96,625

39,836 169,828 – 209,664

Year ended 30.9.2015

Direct costs 12,880 54,274 67,837 134,991

Staff costs 10,077 42,464 –  52,541

Support costs (Note 10) 7,223 30,435 –  37,658

30,180 127,173 67,837 225,190

(b)   Costs of activities for generating funds
Year ended 30.9.2016

Direct costs 9,897 42,193 – 52,090

Year ended 30.9.2015

Direct costs 1,557 44,215 –  45,772

Notes to the financial statements
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8. Grant expenditure in furtherance of the Council’s objects

 The amounts incurred during the period relating to this expenditure are set out below:

2016 2015
$ $

Abilities Beyond Limitations and Expectations (ABLE) 1,6 560,000 550,000

Archdiocesan Commission for the Pastoral Care of  
Migrants and Itinerant People (ACMI) 2 450,000 400,000

Assisi Hospice 1,6
10,000 10,000

Boys’ Town Singapore 1,6 650,000 650,000

Boys’ Town Singapore5 – 200,000

Canossaville Children’s Home (CCH) 1,6 10,000 10,000

Caritas Humanitarian Aid & Relief Initiatives, Singapore (CHARIS) 2 180,000 193,000

Catholic Welfare Services 1,6 397,782 397,782

Catholic AIDS Response Effort (CARE) 1 265,000 440,000

CLARITY Singapore Ltd (CLARITY) 1,6 230,000 200,000

Family Life Society (FLS) 1 700,000 280,000

Infant Jesus Homes & Children’s Centres (IJHCC) 1 375,000 250,000

Montfort Care 1 406,000 470,268

Morning Star Community Services (MSCS) 1 485,000 364,000

Parishes 3 200,600 187,470

Roman Catholic Prison Ministry (RCPM) 2 100,000 65,000

SSVP 5 – 2,000

Mamre Oaks 2 70,000 –

5,089,382 4,669,520

 1 These are IPC affiliate member organisations of the Council.
 2 These are non IPC affiliate member organisations of the Council.
 3  The Council provided grants to 19 parishes to fund the parishes’ projects for the poor and  

 those in need in the community. The following is a summary of the specific causes, as requested  
 by the parishes, for which these grants have been given:

2016 2015
$ $

Aid programme to migrant workers 18,200 9,670

Education grant 10,000 10,000

Financial assistance to individuals/families in crisis 101,800 54,100

Food vouchers/rations to the poor 11,600 10,850

General assistance programme for poor and elderly 4,500 –  

Golden Circle programme 6,000 11,000

Hardship grant – 16,200 

Medical clinic programme 6,400 6,000

Parish Charity Project – 550

Soup Kitchen/St Anthony’s Bread programme 15,000 10,000

SSVP Conferences 4 27,100 55,000

Others – 4,100

200,600 187,470

Notes to the financial statements
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8. Grant expenditure in furtherance of the Council’s objects (cont’d)

4 The Society of St. Vincent de Paul (SSVP) seeks to help the underprivileged families by providing 
financial aid and food rations. SSVP is organised with individual Conferences at 30 parishes. 
These Conferences are grouped into five particular councils under a National Council. Nine of 
the parishes have requested and received grants for the benefit of their Conferences. A listing 
of these conferences and the allocated grant amounts has also been provided to the SSVP 
National Council.

5 These Funds were raised for the needs of the member organisations or as specified by the 
donors.

6 These grants include partial or whole donations credited to the St. Jude Fund as follows:

2016 2015

$ $

Agape Fund

ABLE – 5,000

Assisi Hospice 10,000 10,000

Boys’ Town Singapore – 5,000

Canossaville Children’s Home 10,000 10,000

Catholic Welfare Services Programmes: 

- Gift of Love Home – 2,000

- Good Shepherd Centre – 2,000

- St. Joseph’s Home – 2,000

- St. Theresa’s Home – 2,000

- St. Vincent Home – 2,000

- Villa Francis Home for the Aged – 2,000

CLARITY – 5,000

20,000 47,000

Notes to the financial statements
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9. Governance costs

Agape Fund Agape Fund

Unrestricted Unrestricted

2016 2015

$ $

Direct costs 27,082 37,836

Staff costs – 88,260

Support costs (Note 10) 154,600 64,228

181,682 190,324

 Included in the direct costs are costs of preparing of financial reports, audit fees, board and 
committee costs.

10. Support costs

Costs of 
generating 

funds

Costs of 
formation 
activities

Costs of 
charitable 
activities

Governance 
costs

Total 
support 

costs

$ $ $ $ $

Year ended 30.9.2016

Finance 302 451 1,779 483 3,015

Information technology 6,585 9,877 38,846 10,536 65,844

Human resources 69,481 104,224 409,947 111,170 694,822

Corporate resources 20,257 30,385 119,516 32,411 202,569

96,625 144,937 570,088 154,600 966,250

Year ended 30.9.2015

Finance 317 413 1,904 540 3,174

Information technology 8,041 10,613 48,982 13,877 81,513

Human resources 10,552 13,718 63,315 17,940 105,525

Corporate resources 18,748 24,372 112,486 31,871 187,477

37,658 49,116 226,687 64,228 377,689

Notes to the financial statements
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11. Net incoming resources

 Net incoming resources are stated after charging:

2016 2015

$ $

Auditors’ remuneration

- Audit fees 16,585 15,000

Depreciation 865,072 183,547

Amortization of Agape Village building fund (Note 12) (544,032) (129,378)

Rental expense 144,225 145,491

Notes to the financial statements
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12. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

 There is no office equipment acquired by the Council by means of hire purchase in 2016 (2015: 
$Nil). The cash outflow on addition of property, plant and equipment (excluding Agape Village 
Building) amounted to $218,393 (2015: $825,945).

 During the previous financial year, the Council completed the construction of Agape Village 
building at Lorong 8 Toa Payoh at an estimated total cost of $14,000,000 and received the 
Temporary Occupation Permit on 24 July 2015. Accordingly, the Council transferred the building 
cost from “Agape Building Asset under construction” to the “Agape Village Building” category. 
All expenses incurred in relation to the construction are capitalised to the building cost in 
accordance to the Council’s capitalisation policy.

 Included in the leasehold improvements and Agape Village Building is an amount of $63,000 
and $250,000 for the provision for reinstatement cost for Waterloo office and Agape Village 
Building, respectively.

 Net depreciation charged to the statement of financial activities as cost of generating voluntary 
income are:

2016 2015

$ $

Depreciation for the year 865,072 183,546

Amortisation of Agape Village building fund (Note 20) (544,032) (129,378)

Net depreciation of property, plant and equipment 321,040 54,168

13. Prepayments
2016 2015

$ $

Prepayments (current):

Lease rental 173,815 173,270

Lanworks software– maintenance and assurance 7,588 8,710

Insurance 9,363 6,442

Event expenses 129,276 –

Others 8,125 –

328,167 188,422

Prepayments (non-current):

Lease rental 3,141,850 3,321,728

 Lease rental

 The Council has entered into two term lease from 19 June 2013 with The Titular Catholic 
Archbishop of Singapore (TRCAS) at 55 Waterloo Street as follows:

 (1) Unit #07-01 and Unit #08-01 ending 18 February 2042. The Monthly Rent for the term was  
 paid in advance by way of three (3) payments totalling $3,351,960.

 (2) Unit #06-01 ending 18 June 2023. The Monthly Rent for the term was paid in advance by way of  
 three (3) payments totalling $576,671.

Notes to the financial statements
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14. Other debtors and deposits

2016 2015

$ $

Interest receivable 49,605 51,120

Debtors – 19,366

Other debtors – 19,643

Deposits 46,765 33,345

Grant receivables # 650,000 –

746,370 123,474

 # The grant receivables is from the Community Chest under the Share As One Programme.

15. Cash and cash at bank
2016 2015

$ $

Cash at banks and on hands 4,818,910 2,917,665

Short-term deposits 14,101,504 12,099,453

Cash and cash at bank 18,920,414 15,017,118

 Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term 
deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and twelve months, depending on 
the immediate cash requirements of the Council, and earn interest at the respective short-term 
deposit rates. The weighted average effective interest rate as at 30 September 2016 for the 
Council was 1.48% (2015: 1.11%).

 For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following at 
the end of the reporting period:

2016 2015

$ $

Cash and cash at bank 18,920,414 15,017,118

Notes to the financial statements
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16. Creditors and accruals

2016 2015

$ $

Accruals 2,102,864 1,464,042

Deposits received 35,587 –

Deferred donations 318,050 –

Hire purchase creditor (Note 17) 658 2,632

2,457,159 1,466,674

 
 Included in the accruals is the accrued rental expense of Agape Village amounting to 

$124,385 (2015: $130,749) and professional fees for Agape Village amounting to $1,214,151  
(2015: $1,158,925).

17. Hire purchase creditor

 The hire purchase agreement expires over the next five years and the discount rate implicit in the 
hire purchase is 3.91% per annum.

 Future minimum payments under hire purchase together with the present value of the net 
minimum payments are as follows:

2016 2015

Minimum
payments

Present
value of

payments
Minimum
payments

Present
value of

payments

$ $ $ $

Within one year 786 658 3,144 2,632

– – 787 658

Total minimum lease payments 786 658 3,931 3,290

(128) – (641) –

Present value of net minimum lease 
payments 658 658 3,290 3,290

Notes to the financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

18. Commitments

 The Council leases land and office equipment under non-cancellable lease agreements. These 
leases, which do not have purchase options, have an average tenure of between five and 27 
years. 

 Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable operating leases at the end of the reporting 
period are as follows:

2016 2015

$ $

Not later than one year 75,581 75,581

300,966 301,053

1,286,747 1,410,912

1,663,294 1,787,546

Rental expense incurred for Agape building
for the reporting year 67,689 67,428

 Included in the operating lease payment is the rental payable by the Council for the Agape Village 
at Lorong 8 Toa Payoh on a 3,000 square metre piece of land. The lease is with Titular Roman 
Catholic Archdiocese of Singapore over a period of 27 years, which expires on 5 September 2041 
and is not subject to an escalation clause.
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Notes to the financial statements

19. Restricted and expendable endowment funds

Balance at 
beginning 

of the year
Incoming 
resources

Resources 
expended

Amortisation 
expenses net of 
depreciation of 
property, plant 

and equipment 
credited to 
charitable 
activities

Balance at 
end of the 

year

$ $ $ $ $

2016

General Fund

Capacity Building 
Fund 3 345,836 – – – 345,836

345,836 – – – 345,836

Agape Fund

Boys’ Town 
Singapore1

St. Jude Fund 2 175,000 – 20,000 – 155,000

Capacity Building 
Fund 3 223,340 – – – 223,340

398,340 – 20,000 – 378,340

Total restricted and 
expendable endowment 
funds 744,176 – 20,000 – 724,176

Total unrestricted funds 
(Note 20) 31,147,954 11,852,768 7,609,029 544,032 34,847,661

Total funds 31,892,130 11,852,768 7,629,029 544,032 35,571,837
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Notes to the financial statements

19. Restricted and expendable endowment funds (cont’d)

Balance at 
beginning 

of the year
Incoming 
resources

Resources 
expended

Amortisation 
expenses net of 
depreciation of 
property, plant 

and equipment 
credited to 
charitable 
activities

Balance at 
end of the 

year

$ $ $ $ $

2015

General Fund

Capacity Building 
Fund 3 345,836 – – – 345,836

345,836 – – – 345,836

Agape Fund

Boys’ Town 
Singapore1 – 200,000 200,000 – –

St. Jude Fund 2 222,000 – 47,000 – 175,000

Capacity Building 
Fund 3 223,340 – – – 223,340

445,340 200,000 247,000 – 398,340

Total restricted and 
expendable endowment 
funds 791,176 200,000 247,000 – 744,176

Total unrestricted funds 
(Note 20) 25,808,370 11,529,699 6,060,737 129,378 31,147,954

Total funds 26,599,546 11,729,699 6,307,737 129,378 31,892,130

 1 The Funds were raised for the needs of the member organisations or as specified by the  
 donors.

 2  See Note 2.19 for background and further explanation of the St. Jude Fund, and Note 7  
 (Footnote 3) for the details of the grants made from the St. Jude Fund. 

 3  The Capacity Building Fund is an expendable endowment fund established by the Council  
 that seeks to fund, in the long term, the operating needs of the Council.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



104 Caritas Singapore Annual Report 2016

Notes to the financial statements

20. Unrestricted funds

Balance at 
beginning 

of the year
Incoming 
resources

Resources 
expended

Amortisation 
expenses 

credited to 
charitable 
activities

Balance at 
end of the 

year

$ $ $ $ $

2016

General Fund 1,953,515 1,186,575 1,465,688 – 1,674,402

Agape Fund 15,022,913 8,666,193 6,143,341 – 17,545,765

Agape Village 
Building Fund 
(Note 21) 14,171,526 2,000,000 – 544,032 15,627,494

Total 31,147,954 11,852,768 7,609,029 544,032 34,847,661

2015

General Fund 1,103,578 1,855,022 1,005,085 – 1,953,515

Agape Fund 13,082,195 6,424,227 4,483,509 – 15,022,913

Agape Village 
Building Fund 
(Note 21) 11,622,597 3,250,450 572,143 129,378 14,171,526

Total 25,808,370 11,529,699 6,060,737 129,378 31,147,954

 During the previous financial year, the Council completed the construction of Agape Village 
building at Lorong 8 Toa Payoh where donations raised are placed in the designated Agape 
Building Fund. Accordingly, the Agape Village Building Fund is amortised and netted off the 
corresponding depreciation of the building in the statement of financial activities (Note 12).

 Movements of the Agape Village Building fund are disclosed as follows:

2016 2015

Agape Village Building fund : $ $

Balance at beginning of the year 14,300,904 11,622,597

Net incoming resources 2,000,000 2,678,307

Balance at the end of the year 16,300,904 14,300,904

Amount amortised:

Balance at the beginning of the year (129,378) –

Amortisation for the year (Note 12) (544,032) (129,378)

Balance at the end of the year (673,410) (129,378)

Net balance at the end of the year 15,627,494 14,171,526
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21. Agape Village Building Fund

 The Agape Building Fund is an unrestricted designated sub-fund set up under both the Agape Fund 
for donations with tax-exempt receipts and the General Fund for donations without tax-exempt 
receipts. The usage of the tax-exempt donations under the Agape Fund requires the approval of 
the Board of the Council and the Board of Trustees. The Agape Building Fund has been designated 
primarily to fund the construction and operations of Agape Village at Lorong 8 Toa Payoh on a 
3,000 square metre piece of land owned by the Titular Roman Catholic Archdiocese of Singapore.  

 The Council intends to create a new one-stop Catholic Services hub where people in need can 
connect to the 23 charities and services under its umbrella to help those in need, regardless 
of race, language or religion. It will also bring together the common services of our Catholic 
charities under one roof – integrated case management, counselling, legal aid, medical aid, 
care-giver support, skills training and job matching for displaced workers and professionals, 
mentoring and life skills, coaching for the poor and marginalised in our society.

 The Council completed the construction of Agape Village end June 2015 at an estimated total 
cost of $14,000,000 (including contingencies) and received the Temporary Occupation Permit on 
24 July 2015.

22. Trustees’/Directors’ remuneration

 No Trustee or Director has received any remuneration from the Council or Agape Fund during 
the year and neither has received reimbursements for expenses incurred in attending Board, 
committee or Trustee meetings. 

23. Related party transactions

 The following significant transactions took place during the year:

2016 2015

$ $

Grant expenditure (Note 8):

CHARIS 180,000 193,000

CARE 265,000 440,000

 These organisations are related parties to the Council in this financial year due to common 
directors. 

Notes to the financial statements
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24. Employee benefits

General Fund
Agape 

Fund
Agape 

Building Fund Total

Unrestricted Unrestricted 
Unrestricted but 

Designated

$ $ $ $

2016

Salaries and leave accruals 89,308 461,974 – 551,282

Central provident fund 
contributions 15,166 78,449 – 93,615

8,087 41,834 – 49,921

112,561 582,257 – 694,818

2015

Salaries and leave accruals 72,861 396,171 245,683 714,715

Central provident fund 
contributions 7,610 41,377 36,490 85,477

16,393 89,133 79,627 185,153

96,864 526,681 361,800 985,345

25. Compensation of key management personnel

2016 2015

$ $

302,013 265,725

Central provident funds contributions 27,862 27,100

329,875 292,825

 There is one employee with emoluments above $100,000. The above compensation relates to 
the top 3 executives.

26. Taxation

 The Council is exempted from income tax under Section 13(1) (zm) of the Income Tax Act,  
Cap. 134.
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27. Financial risk management objectives and policies

 The Council’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents. The main 
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Council’s operations. The Council has 
various other financial assets and liabilities such as other receivables and other creditors and 
accruals, which arise directly from its operations.

 Due to the nature of the Council’s activities, it has minimal financial risks exposure. The Finance 
and Investment Committee provides oversight of the Council’s overall risk management and 
it recommends to the Board of the Council the overall policy pertaining to the Council’s cash 
management and investment. The Council’s Directors review and agree to policies for managing 
each of these risks and they are summarised below: 

 (a) Interest rate risk

 The Council’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from the Council’s cash and 
cash equivalents. The Council does not place its funds in investment debt securities nor 
does it use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.  

 The Council’s policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available.

 Information relating to the Council’s interest rate exposure is also disclosed in the 
respective notes to the financial statements where applicable. Sensitivity analysis of the 
interest rate exposure is not significant.

 (b) Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting financial 
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Council’s exposure to liquidity risk arises 
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

 Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Council’s financial assets and 
liabilities at the balance sheet date based on contractual undiscounted repayment 
obligations:

2016 2015

1 year
or less

More than
1 year

1 year or 
less

More than
1 year

$ $ $ $
Financial assets
Other debtors and deposits 746,370 – 746,370 –
Cash and cash equivalents 18,920,414 – 15,017,118 –

19,666,784 – 15,763,488 –

Financial liabilities
Hire purchase creditor 786 – 3,144 787
Creditors and accruals 2,138,451 – 1,464,042 –

2,139,237 – 1,467,186 787

Notes to the financial statements
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27. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

 (b)   Liquidity risk (cont’d)

 In the management of liquidity risk, the Council monitors and maintains a level of cash and 
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the Directors to finance the Council’s operations and 
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

 (c)   Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Council if a counterparty to a financial instrument 
fails to meet its contractual obligations.

 The Council’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents and these 
are placed with financial institutions of high credit standing and regulated.

28. Fair value of financial instruments

 (a)   Fair value hierarchy

The Council categorises fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that is
dependent on the valuation inputs used as follows:

- Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities 
 that the Group can access at the measurement date,

- Level 2 – Inputs other that quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
 for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and

- Level 3 – Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Fair value measurements that use inputs of different hierarchy levels are categorised in its 
entirety in the same level of the fair value
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28. Fair value of financial instruments (cont’d)

 (b) Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and  
 whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value (cont’d)

 The Council has determined that the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities are 
reasonable approximation of their fair values as they are mostly short-term in nature. 

 The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in each of their following categories are as 
follows: 

Loans and 
receivables assets Total

$ $ $

2016

Assets

Non-current

Property, plant and equipment – 964,899 964,899

Prepayments – 3,141,850 3,141,850

Agape Village building cost – 14,240,296 14,240,296

Current

Prepayments – 328,167 328,167

Other debtors and deposits 746,370 – 746,370

Cash and cash equivalents 18,920,414 – 18,920,414

19,666,784 18,675,212 38,341,996

Amortised cost Total

$ $

Liabilities

Non-current

Hire purchase creditor – –

Current

Creditors and accruals 2,457,159 2,457,159

2,457,159 2,457,159
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28. Fair value of financial instruments (cont’d)

 (b) Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and  
 whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value (cont’d)

Loans and 
receivables assets Total

$ $ $

2015

Assets

Non-current
Property, plant and equipment – 1,060,100 1,060,100

Prepayments – 3,321,728 3,321,728

Agape Village building cost – 13,961,620 13,961,620

Current

Prepayments – 188,422 188,422

Other debtors and deposits 123,474 – 123,474

Cash and cash equivalents 15,017,118 – 15,017,118

15,140,592 18,531,870 33,672,462

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised 
cost Total

$ $

Liabilities

Non-current
Hire purchase creditor   658 658

Current
Creditors and accruals 1,466,674 1,466,674

1,467,332 1,467,332

29. Reserves management

 The reserves of the Council comprise the General Fund, the Agape Fund and the Agape Building 
Fund. The Council targets a general reserve level of two years, taking into account that the grant 
making function represents the majority of its expenditure, and the lag period between member 
organisations’ budgetary needs and the inflow from current year’s fundraising activities.

30. Authorisation of financial statements for issue

 The financial statements for the financial year ended 30 September 2016 were authorised for 
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 22 December 2016.
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